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LARGE PORTFOLIO OF 
EASY-TO-USE 

HIGH QUALITY SECURITY SOLUTIONS

CONSUMER 
Simple and Comprehensive Solutions for Desktops,

Laptops, Tablets and Smartphones.

ENTERPRISE
Powerful Enterprise Solutions for Endpoint Security, 
Gateway Security and Mobile Device Management.
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We have established a leadership position 
in developing proactive, proven security 
solutions and services that protect systems, 
networks and mobile devices for business 
and personal use around the world. We are 
the leaders in software security products 
in the retail segment, with trusted security 
architecture. Through a growing portfolio of 
integrated, innovative and simple-to-manage 
solutions across price points, we have earned 
the trust of our customers. The diversity and 
scale of our products and our capabilities put 
us in a unique position to respond to market 
needs. Our track record of two decades, 
experienced management, strong brands and 
well-equipped team of support engineers lend 

for growth and executed it well. We drove 
our core businesses in the retail segment, 
where we have a dominant position, and 
build on these assets to increase presence 
in the enterprise, government and mobile 
device segments. We also gained valuable 
intellectual property to enter diverse markets. 
We sharpened our focus and accelerated 
our pace of innovation to deliver shareholder 
returns. We continued our relentless pursuit 
of growing exports and strengthening our 
research and development capabilities to 
drive scalable and sustainable growth.

Moving ahead, we are making on-going 
investments in new technology to drive rapid 
innovation and create business value. Our 
aim is to deliver operational excellence and 
thought-leadership on strategic decisions and 
investment plans. With this, we aim to achieve 
our desired business goals and improve 
resiliency in today’s cyber world. We wish to 
make security an “essential ingredient” of all 
architecture, and on every platform. We live by 

to work safely and securely in the digital 
world, detect threats and correct potential 
vulnerabilities.



3%

AT A GLANCE

We are one of the leading providers of security software 
products and solutions in India, with a leadership 
position in the retail segment. We have a track record 
of more than 20 years in specialising in cyber security. 
We have a large portfolio of easy-to-use, high quality 
security software products and solutions indigenously 
developed in India. These are designed to simplify IT 
security management across the length and depth 
of devices and on multiple platforms. Our solutions 
are customised to suit consumers, small businesses, 
Government establishments and corporate houses.

single and multi-tier structure, covering metros and Tier 
1, 2 and 3 towns. We have a presence across segments 
and platforms and devices. We track evolving security 

and protect critical data. We have a strong R&D team 
equipped to develop new products and applications and 
focusing on computer and network security solutions. 
Our current portfolio of cloud-based security and 
advanced machine learning enabled solutions stop 

considerably reducing system resource usage.

OUR REVENUE BUILD-UPWHAT DIFFERENTIATES US IN THE MARKETPLACE

  Large & Growing User Base

 

 

 

OUR REVENUE COMPOSITION

97%  India 

3%    Rest of the World

87

13
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HOW WE SERVE OUR CUSTOMERS

 

 

 Product availability across customers

7.3 Million
Active User Licenses

30%
Market share in Retail Segment

19,000

372

Vision
To be one of the most trusted and premium brands through fast paced innovation and our leadership ability to 
deliver the best of products and services to our customers and delighting our stakeholders while being mindful of 
our overall responsibilities.

Mission
To solidify our leadership position globally in an ever-evolving security products and services industry, across a 

forge strong customer and partner relationships.

306 
Government 

1,092

20 Years

 

400
Sales & Marketing Manpower 
Strength

36

64

4

 Multi-lingual customer support

 Domestic and international support centre

 Remote and on-site ground support
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OUR DIVERSIFIED PRESENCE

We continue to retain and 
expand our user base 
consistently by focusing on 
Tier 2 and 3 towns in India. 
Besides enhancing our brand 
presence in India, we are 
considering international 
expansion through consistent 
brand building and marketing 
efforts. 

INDIA (HO)

Technologies Ltd.

JAPAN

Technologies 

UAE

Technologies

KENYA

Technologies 
Africa Ltd.

USA

Technologies 
America Inc.

Customer Centric Approach
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24.5m+
PRODUCT LICENSES INSTALLED

7.3m+
ACTIVE LICENSES ACROSS MORE 

THAN 80 COUNTRIES

30% +
CONSUMER MARKET 

SHARE IN INDIA

growth
ACTIVE LICENSES ACROSS MORE 

THAN 80 COUNTRIES

CHOICE OF IT TECHNICIANS FOR 

COMPUTER VIRUS CLEANING

We continue to retain and 
expand our user base 
consistently by focusing 
on Tier 2 and 3 towns in 
India. Besides enhancing 
our brand presence in India, 
we are ramping up our 
international expansion 
through consistent brand 
building and marketing 
efforts. We are exploring 
further opportunities in 
newer territories such as  
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OUR PRODUCTS
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Home, SMB, Enterprise, Government

Windows, Mac, Android, iOS, Linux

Desktops, Laptops, Mobiles and Tablets

Quick Heal

Seqrite

PRESENCE ACROSS THE VALUE CHAIN

OUR PRODUCTS
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Ltd.’

 
DOS version

  
Windows version

 

 

 

partner

 
International Security 

 

Ltd.

 

1995 
- 

1998

2006
- 

2007

2008
2002

- 
2004

OUR JOURNEY

 

 

2009
- 

2010
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Mobile Security

 
Point Security

 
behavior based 

 

 Attains ISO 9000 

 
IT Security products and solutions to 
business enterprise customers

 
Technologies Pvt. Ltd., India’

 

Boston

 
Mobile security + insurance

 

 

 
Japan

 

Technology from Apurva 
Technologies, India

 

 

 Launches free mobile 
security for Android

 

Ltd, India

 
exchanges

 

 

2011 2014

20152012
- 

2013

2016



QUICK HEAL TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED 9

CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

Dear Shareholders,

business, built and introduced new products and 
advanced our key strategic initiatives. This enabled 
us to improve our competitiveness and create value 
for shareholders.

I feel exceptionally privileged to work with such 

team and our employees do outstanding work every 
single day — sometimes under enormous work 
pressure — while dealing with an extreme number 
of complex business and regulatory issues. The 

challenges, while continuing to grow our businesses 

never stopped supporting clients and make a 
positive impact on our communities. 

retail and institutional investors for the excellent 
response to the offering and for making the IPO a 
grand success. We are humbled by your continued 

our commitment to you.

Led by our long-term vision to become a global 
leader in brands and technologies, guided by our 
values and with an inspired team, we continued to 
implement our strategy. Our clear focus has been 
to deliver strong performance – despite a highly 
volatile and challenging business environment.

to successfully implement our strategy and laid 
a strong foundation for the future. Robust growth 
was displayed across all customer segments. Our 

` 3,380.7 million. Revenue 

at `
at ` 584.0 million. Our total number of licenses sold 

million, displaying a growth of 18%, 34% and 225%, 
respectively. 
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We incurred expenses of ` 
year towards R&D. We have a conservative approach 
to expense out our R&D cost. We also hope to gain 

we witness growth in mobile and handheld devices 
segments. The Board approved a total dividend payout of 
` 
tax of `  
` 2.50 per equity share with face value of ̀  10, amounting 

Strong brands are the backbone of our business. We 
have established a proven track record of execution 
since two decades and are further expanding our user 
base through customised offerings and new products to 
address emergent needs and bring value to the customer. 
We are a highly differentiated IP-driven IT company, that 
has built its success on its IP protected products. Our 
business model is about creating quantum revenue 

to our cost structure. We are in the business of selling 
standard software solutions to millions of users, not 
bound by geographical limitations. Our commitment to 
innovation is reflected in high innovation rates across all 
businesses.

We continue to build our business by investing in 
infrastructure, systems, technology and new products. 
Our new generation security software solutions are 
designed to meet diverse enterprise requirements, 

with a comprehensive product portfolio, we are taking full 
advantage of our R&D expertise to build a strong platform 
and make deep inroads into the institutional segment. 

segments to be a key future growth driver. The market 
potential in this segment is vast, given that Smartphone 
sales are seen rising from 90 million in 2013 to 339 

In addition to desktop and mobile security, we also 
offer end-point security, cloud-based mobile device 

our solutions are available across a wide range of 
platforms – Windows, Mac, Android, iOS and Linux, and 
across various devices – Desktops, Laptops, Mobiles 
and Tablets. We have an extensive pan-India distribution 
network to reach end-customers in India.

We aim to expand our existing product offerings and 
offer differentiated solutions to customers, thereby 
strengthening our overall brand presence in India and 
globally and will continue to retain and expand our user 
base. We are currently identifying new SMB opportunities, 
increasing our engagement with channel partners and 
expanding internationally by strengthening our brand 
presenc e. We also intend to use consulting and training 
in the area of security to explore new avenues and build a 

The task ahead is simple to state: It is to enhance our 
market competitiveness and achieve industry leading 
growth and margins. In addition to increasing our 
competitive advantages and pricing power, we are 
focusing on making long-term investments in building 
strong R&D capabilities. We aim to improve the agility 
of our company, and sharpen the accountability of our 
business units, projects and individuals to deliver results.

The enthusiasm, commitment, energy and hard work 

committed to our targets and we will continue to 
implement our strategy to deliver excellent performance.

We thank you, our dear shareholders, for your whole-

with the conviction, strength and courage to prepare for, 
and face, the future. As we march ahead, we know we can 
continue to rely on your support to strengthen us in India 
and across the world.

With Regards,

Mr. Kailash Katkar
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OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

KAILASH KATKAR

MD & CEO

Promoter of the 
Company since 
incorporation

ABHIJIT JORVEKAR

Executive Director and VP

Responsible for 
Sales & Marketing

SANJAY KATKAR

MD & CEO

Promoter of the 
Company since 
incorporation

APURVA JOSHI

Independent Director

-
sic accounting profes-
sional and anti-money 
laundering expert

PRADEEP BHIDE

Independent Director

has served in senior 
positions at the State 
Government and Central 
Government

SHAILESH LAKHANI

Non-Executive Director

Serves as the MD at 
Sequoia Capital India

MEHUL SAVLA

Independent Director

Serves as the Director 
of RippleWave Equity 
Private Limited

SUNIL SETHY

Independent Director

Comes from an experienced 

treasury, and legal departments
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

 
Managing Director & CEO

 
Managing Director & CTO

Mr. Abhijit Shantaram Jorvekar 
Executive Director and  
Vice President Sales

Mr. Shailesh Lakhani   
Non-Executive Director

 
Non-Executive Independent Director

 
Non-Executive Independent Director

Mr. Mehul Mulchand Savla 
Non-Executive Independent Director

Ms. Apurva Pradeep Joshi 
Non-Executive Independent Director

Mr. Rajesh Ghonasgi

Company Secretary & Compliance 

Accountants,

 

Bankers

Axis Bank Limited
Bank of India 

State Bank of India Limited

M/s Link Intime India 
Private Limited

Mumbai-400078

co.in

 
Chairman

 
Member

Ms. Apurva Pradeep Joshi    
Member

 
Committee

 
Chairman

Mr. Mehul Mulchand Savla 
Member

 
Member

Committee

Mr. Mehul Mulchand Savla 
Chairman

 
Member

Ms. Apurva Pradeep Joshi
Member

Corporate Social Responsibility 
Committee

Ms. Apurva Pradeep Joshi 
Chairman

 
Member

 
Member

1212
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OUR FINANCIAL SCORECARD

EBITDA

918

1,025
1,0441,052

957

722

766.1

602
677

489

In ` Million OPERATING CASH FLOW In ` Million

GROSS PROFIT In ` Million

2,606

3,115

2,237
1,894

1,644

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS In ` Million

2,861

3,381

2,428

1,790
2,050

538

584
584

769

628

493

175
95

19

PROFIT AFTER TAX In ` Million
AMOUNT OF DIVIDEND DECLARED AND PAID 
EXCLUDING DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION TAX In ` Million
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OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

 

 Retail:

  0.92 million

 Mobile Segment: 0.18 million 

 Consumer Security: 1,343 million  
attacks blocked 

  118 million  
attacks blocked 

 Mobile Security:  
apps detected 

 

AWARDS
 Won the 12th

 Gold Winner for Product Development/

 Silver Winner in the category for Security 
Products and Solutions for Small 

 

“Information Security Testing” for the 5th 
consecutive year in a row

14ANNUAL REPORT 2015-2016
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AWARDS & ACCOLADES

2008 Segments awarded by United 
Business Media

2009

Segments awarded by United 
Business Media

Maharashtra IT Awards, awarded 
by Government of Maharashtra

Segments awarded by United 
Business Media

2010

awarded by Deloitte

Innovation awarded by Business 
Today

Tech Life – The Lifestyle and 

Segments awarded by United 
Business Media

2012
Quality Brands awarded by Quality 
Brand Times

2013 Quality Brands awarded by Quality 
Brand Times

Our large portfolio of products solutions has earned us a 

and publications. We attribute the industry recognition 
to our research & development as well as technology 
capabilities, which represent our core competency and are 
one of our key competitive advantages.

2014

Quality Brands awarded by Quality 
Brand Times

Security awarded by United 
Business Media

2015

Security awarded by United 
Business Media

category awarded by OneIndia

Information Technology Products 
for small and medium enterprise 
category awarded by Indian 

Best Make in India Brand-14th 

Award

12th Annual Info Security PG’s 

USA

Winner for Product Development/

category of Security Products and 
Solutions for Small Businesses 

“Information Security Testing” 
Award for the 5th consecutive year
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8
TRADEMARKS IN INDIA

7
TRADEMARKS IN ROW

4
PATENTS IN UNITED STATES

3
PENDING PATENT 

APPLICATIONS IN INDIA

2
COPYRIGHTS IN INDIA

4
PENDING COPYRIGHT 

APPLICATIONS IN INDIA
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“Information Security Testing” 
Award for the 5th consecutive year

 
in the category of Security Products and
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BUSINESS ENABLERS  
FOR LONG-TERM GROWTH

We are the preferred anti-virus solution provider 
company, offering solutions to home users, small 

for home users, we command a 30% market share 
in the consumer segment. Our retail segment 

 
We are dedicated to building strong, sustainable 
and long-term customer and partner relationships 
based on customisation, quality and alliances.

Our proprietary anti-virus technology – sold under 

security threats including virus attacks across 

easily deployable and trustworthy security 
solutions for defense against real-time risks. The 
solutions simplify security management across 
the length and depth of devices and on multiple 

with a genuine culture of customer satisfaction 
and the product family has been voted as the 

Our High-Quality Solutions

Our solutions guard the users against viruses, 
spam, and spyware, as well as to manage data 
loss prevention, mobile security, host intrusion 
prevention, encryption, and e-mail security. We 
provide high-quality feature-rich security software 
solutions for the consumer segment that can 
be deployed or accessed with minimal effort 
and limited technical knowledge. Our solutions 

endeavour to offer a superior user experience. 

We have more than 24.5 million licenses of our 
products installed and have over 7.3 million 
active licenses spread across more than 80 
countries. Our distribution model helps us deliver 
our solutions to a large addressable market, 

with a 30% market share 
in the consumer segment. 
We are a popular anti-

a strong market position. 

Increase Market Share

distributed across a broad geographic spectrum 
at low costs. We have a network of 19,000 retail 
channel partners and 1,092 mobile channel 
partners. 

Our distribution reach and selling capabilities of 
the channel partner network continues to drive 
business growth and provides us with competitive 
market advantages. We strive to retain and 
expand our user base in Tier II and Tier III towns 
with tailored offerings for users. We develop and 

We have strong, sustainable and long-term 
relationships with channel partners, who are 
leveraged to distribute and re-sell solutions and 
maintain connectivity with end-users.

1
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ACTIVE LICENSES (‘000)

Mar12 Mar13 Mar14 Mar15 Mar16

5,450
6,317

7,323

4,386
3,635

2.0X
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Smaller enterprises are steadily adopting 
higher levels of security measures. Small Indian 
enterprises typically look for basic security 
measures such as antivirus, anti-spam and 

Internet and network security measures. We, at 

the enterprise segment. We are taking initiatives to 
diversify from our retail-centric revenue base and 

which currently forms 13% of our revenue.

During the year, we launched the Seqrite brand 
for the enterprise and government segment to 

expanding our range of security products for the 

and manufacturing sectors. We have a robust 
network and content security solutions designed 
to protect resources and communication channels 

corporate networks. 

Developing Logistics

We are backed by our skilled and dedicated 
manpower, domain expertise and state-of-art 
research & development base. This results in 
premium security solutions and services, accruing 
to intellectual and business advantage for partners 
and customers. We are focusing on developing 
our logistics to ensure all enterprise products are 
available within 24 hours. We are expanding our 
sales team, identifying new SMB opportunities and 
increasing engagement with channel partners to 
grow our SMB and enterprise business.

We are banking on our two products — Seqrite 

enterprise segments and Seqrite Terminator, its 
UTM targeted at the SMB segment. We foresee 
good traction in the education, manufacturing and 

government segments. This is a scalable product 
based on a Web security engine. It consolidates 
multiple features such as application and device 
control, an intrusion detection & prevention 

With a robust product portfolio in place, we 

enterprise partners. It includes deal registration, 
training, incentives and dedicated partner or sales 
managers in each region. We will tier partners into 
Silver, Gold and Platinum levels for the enterprise 

products and revenue. We are currently focusing 
on setting up processes and appointing partners 
based on their reach and industry or geographic 

larger network supporting up to 2,000  
plus endpoints.

BUSINESS ENABLERS  
FOR LONG-TERM GROWTH2

 Manufacturing 

 

 

 

 

 Government Organisations

 

 Service Sector
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Mid-market and 

Seqrite Terminator SMB segment

We are eyeing the enterprise 
segment for future growth. 

to earn trust of enterprise 

focusing on their businesses. 

0.27 million
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Marking a tremendous milestone, we forayed into 

implement portfolio of proven solutions, backed by 

that our deep, global expertise in addressing the 

customers well.

TM line of data security 
solutions is available throughout United States 

to prevent internal and external threats, attacks 
and malicious intents before they strike the 

end solution covering endpoint, server, network 
and mobile device protection, as well as cloud-
enabled management.

BUSINESS ENABLERS  
FOR LONG-TERM GROWTH

Capitalising on our Domain 

the International Market

3
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on international markets. 
We currently serve 7.3 
million customers in over 80 
countries on the international 
platform. We are aiming at 

7.3 Million
CUSTOMERS ACROSS THE GLOBE

80+
COUNTRIES WE ARE PRESENT IN
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As of December 2015, India had over 350 million 
Internet users. It was the second-largest user 
base for Internet across the globe. This number 
is anticipated to touch an impressive 500 million 
by 2017. And with India being the world’s second-
largest smartphone market with its total base 
crossing 218 million users, business growth and 
volumes in the mobile device segment is only 
expected to rise.

Proliferation of smartphone/mobile devices has 
created a diverse computing environment for 

– free and paid – for mobile devices. Our mobile 
security products have been well accepted. We 
entered into agreements with distributors of 
branded mobile phones through which the mobile 
anti-virus solution is bundled with the smartphone 
at the time of sale. We are also leveraging the 
opportunity of offering free solutions for mobile 
devices. In addition to this, we are betting on the 

the need for security in mobile devices.

Moving ahead, we foresee the mobile device 
vertical to be one of the biggest contributors to 
our future revenues. With the education segment 
also having adopted UTM solutions, mobile device 
management is a sector where we have a clear 
emphasis. 

HOW DOES THE PRODUCT WORK? 

malware
Delete malware Delete spyware Delete viruses 

Complete protection 
against Data Theft, Cyber 

Vulnerabilities

BUSINESS ENABLERS  
FOR LONG-TERM GROWTH

from our Mobile Business

4

Our motive is to develop additional solutions 
delivering functionality that is currently available 
for desktops and laptop users to mobile devices, 

developed an app for Windows Mobile-based 
smartphones, we look to develop more security 
apps for other devices, such as tablets. We also 

In addition to mobile security solutions, we aim 
to provide insurance for mobile phones. Towards 
this move, we joined hands with an insurance 
company to offer insurance. Our product Quick 

product awareness for such solutions. We 
launched this product across major platforms of 
Android, iOS and Windows smartphones, offering 
a mix of mobile security and handset insurance. 
Besides security against viruses and malware, it 
provides insurance cover against theft, burglary 
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Mobile platforms we cater to:

Android

Windows

Linux

iOS 

Blackberry 

Mobile security is the fastest 

Quick Heal. It will remain a key area 

virus segment. We are focusing on 
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model supporting strong cash 
generation. Investment in research 
and development in enterprise 
and mobile device segment and 
establishing distribution network 
for these two segments pulled 

to investments incurred on our 
foray into new product lines and 
sales and distribution. Our capital 
expenditure increased to `
million.

Going forward, we expect margins 
to recover from the current levels, 
with major expenditure on products. 
Margins will also improve due to 
positive operating leverage due to 
consistent growth in revenues while 
controlling R&D costs and other 
operating expenses. Margins will 
also improve once the enterprise 
business achieves higher scale. Our 
development cost will remain stable 
and already-existing products will 
start generating higher revenues. All 
these factors will result in double-

hope to earn 18-20% year-on-year 

Margins 

BUSINESS ENABLERS  
FOR LONG-TERM GROWTH5
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92.1%
GROSS MARGIN

`1,024.60 Mn
EBITDA 

`584 Mn
PAT 

with a positive operating leverage with consistent 

improve once our enterprise business achieves scale.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ECONOMIC OVERVIEW

in 2013 and 2014. The years were marked by a macro-



ABO
U

T Q
U

ICK H
EAL

FIN
AN

CIALS
CO

RPO
RATE G

O
VERN

AN
CE 

N
O

TICE & D
IRECTO

RS’ REPO
RT

M
D

&A
ABO

U
T 

ANNUAL REPORT 2015-2016 28

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

Information Security Landscape in India

of cyberattacks.

26 million
malicious apps 
detected in FY16

Mobile Security
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

NUMBER OF CYBER 
ATTACKS IN INDIA

FY2012FY2011 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015

1,30,338

2,78,912

71,780

22,06013,601

AVERAGE COST 
SUFFERED PER ATTACK

FY2013 FY2014 FY2015

57

25

11

In Thousand In Thousand

WINDOWS MALWARE In Billion

21%

FY2014 FY2015

1.46

1.15

ANDROID MALWARE In Billion

FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015

1.05

3.85

5.44

0.26

21x
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INDIA HAS 2ND LARGEST INTERNET 
USER BASE IN THE WORLD

RISING SMARTPHONE SUBSCRIPTIONS

FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 FY2017E

218

339

140

90

FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 FY2017E

354

500

257

190

GROWING MOBILE INTERNET 
USERBASE

CONTINUED INCREASE IN PC 
INSTALLED BASE

FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 FY2016 FY2017E

175

236

314

159
130

FY2013 FY2015 FY2017E

70

57.5

47.5

OF ALL DEVICES EXPECTED TO BECOME 
MOBILE CONNECTED BY 2019

74%
OF ALL DEVICES EXPECTED TO BE 
SMARTPHONES BY 2019

40%
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In Million 

In Million 

In Million 

In Million 

CAGR 
27%

CAGR 
25%

CAGR 
39%

CAGR 
10%
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IT Security Market in India – Strong Growth Potential

at over `

`

market share.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

2. End Point Security (EPS)

4. Mobile Device Management (MDM)

Small & Medium Businesses (SMB) – Future De-
mand Driver for IT Security Software

INDIAN IT SECURITY MARKET In ` Billion

FY2013 FY2015 FY2017E

10-12

51-53

Services Software

65-67

27%

25%

17%

25%

80-85

12-14

15-18

16-19

45-50
37-39

14-16

11-13

28-30

% Share

57%

23%

20%

1. Retail

IT SECURITY PRODUCT SEGMENTS

MDM UTM EPS Retail Total

25-30%
0.8-1.1

3-3.5

4-5

6-8 15-18

15-20%

10-15%

20-25% 15-20%

In ` Billion
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New Opportunities

1. Digital India

2. 100 Smart City Plan

`

3. Internet of Things (IoT) & Home Automation

` 

3.4%

0.3%

In Addition to Retail Demand, Even SMBs Are expected to Drive Demand for IT Security in Future

19%
Services

10%

116 mn51 mn
base in India

38%  40% 

14%

8%

18%

9%

14%

4%
40%713
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COMPANY OVERVIEW

more than 30% market share. 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

GROWTH TREND IN ACTIVE LICENSES (‘000)

MAR12 Mar13 MAR14 MAR15 MAR16

5,450
6,317

7,323

4,386
3,635

2.0X

Quick Heal’s Product Competance
 

 

 

Robust R&D Framework to Actively Track and Quaran-
tine New Viruses
R&D Team Composition
1. Business Logic Team:

2. Product Development Team:  for the 

3. Incidence Response Team: any 

4. Threat Research and Response Team:

Internet of Things Security Team:

Quality Assurance Team:
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RECENT AWARDS & ACHIEVEMENTS

Year Awards / Achievements

2014
2014
2014
2013
2012
2012
2010
2010
2010
2010

Our Competitive Advantages

Established and Proven Technology 

characteristics. 

Comprehensive Product Portfolio – Easy-to-Use, High-
quality Solutions
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Products for  Home Users Products for 
Smartphones / 
Mobiles

Products for SMBs, Enterprises, Educational 
Institutions and Government Bodies

Fonetastic Free

Products for Home Users - Key Features

websites

Browser Sandbox
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Products for Smartphones / Mobiles - Key Features

Restore

observed.

Products for SMBs, Enterprises, Educational Institutions, Government Bodies
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Extensive Pan-India Distribution Network

Retail Network

 

India.

Enterprise Network

Mobile Network

Superior Customer Support

 
and retention.

Business Outlook & Stratege

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Rapidly evolving market needs and new technol-
ogy developments

Intense competition from global and domestic 
anti-virus solution providers

Our business and growth prospects depend on 
relationships with our channel partners



QUICK HEAL TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED 39

brand.

Exposure to counterparty credit risk in our opera-
tions

Inability to protect our proprietary technology and 
intellectual property rights

HUMAN RESOURCES

st

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

Technology:

Processes:

People:

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

Revenue from Operations

Operating Expenses

Technology Subscription Charges

Power and Fuel

Insurance

Repairs and Maintenance
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Business Promotion and Advertising & Sales Promotion 
Expenses 

Travelling and Conveyance Expenses

Legal and Professional Fees

Provision for Doubtful Debts and Advances / Bad debts 
written off

Miscellaneous Expenses
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Printing and Stationary and Postage and Courier grew on 
account of additional manpower as well as increase in 
business.

Earnings before Interest Tax Depreciation and 
Amortisation (EBITDA)

Interest

Depreciation

Equity

 

INTERNAL CONTROL & SYSTEMS

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT
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Notice is hereby given that the 21st Annual General 
Meeting of the Members of Quick Heal Technologies 
Limited will be held on Friday, 5th August 2016 at 11:00 
a.m. at Pandit Jawaharlal Nehru Sanskrutik Bhavan, 
1187/21, Ghole Road, Opposite Mahatma Phule Museum, 
Shivajinagar, Pune, Maharashtra 411005, to transact the 
following business

Ordinary Business

ended 31st March 2016 together with the Reports of 
Directors and Auditors thereon.

3. To appoint a director in place of Mr. Shailesh Lakhani 
(DIN: 03567739) who retires by rotation and, being 

4. To appoint a director in place of Mr. Sanjay Katkar 
(DIN: 00397277) who retires by rotation and, being 

Ordinary Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
sections 139(9) and 142(1) and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, read 
with rules made there under, as amended from time 
to time, the appointment of M/s. SRBC & Co LLP (Firm 

approved in the 19th Annual General Meeting until 
the conclusion of the 24th Annual General Meeting 
to be held in the calendar year 2019  be and is 

the conclusion of next Annual General Meeting, as 
Auditors, on a remuneration plus reimbursement of 

between the Chairman of the Board, Chairman of the 
Audit Committee and the Auditors.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS

Ordinary Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 188 (1) (f) and other applicable provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made 

the consent of the Company be and is hereby 

Katkar, who is relative of Mr. Kailash Katkar, Managing 

st 

May 2016 on such Terms and conditions and on such 

as per Company’s rules, as may be decided by the 
Nomination & Remuneration Committee of Board of 
Directors, provided that the aggregate remuneration 
payable to Mrs. Anupama Katkar shall not exceed 
`
the approval of the members.”

 FURTHER RESOLVED THAT Mr. Kailash Katkar (DIN: 

Katkar (DIN: 00397277), Managing Director & CTO 

Director be and is/are hereby singly authorized 
to take necessary steps and action as they may 
think expedient and to do all such acts, deeds and 
things necessary in this regard to give effect to this 
resolution.”

Ordinary Resolution:

 RESOLVED THAT, M/s Bhavesh Marolia & Associates, 
Practitioner Cost accountant, be and are hereby 
appointed as Cost Auditors of the Company for the 

`
Government Taxes plus traveling and out of pocket 
expenses at actuals.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Kailash Katkar (DIN: 

Katkar (DIN: 00397277), Managing Director & CTO 
be and are hereby singly authorized to complete the 
formalities and to do all such acts, matters, deeds, 
things and to sign including in electronic form, paper, 

Resolution:

NOTICE
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 “RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and in accordance with 

before the meeting and initialed by the Chairman for 

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the Applicable Laws, 
approval of the members of the Company be and is 
hereby accorded to grant the stock options under 

permanent employees of the holding and subsidiary 
company(ies) and their director(s) whether whole time 
director or not but excluding independent directors, if 
any, from time to time, on such terms and conditions 
as may be decided by the Board which term shall be 
deemed to include any Committee, which the Board 
has constituted to exercise its powers.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in case of any corporate 
action (s) such as rights issues, bonus issues, merger 
and sale of division and others, if any additional 

Option Grantees for the purpose of making a fair and 
reasonable adjustment to the options granted earlier 
shall be deemed to be increased to the extent of such 

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is 

upon exercise of options from time to time in 
accordance with the employee stock option scheme 

Company.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT

consolidated, then the number of shares to be allotted 

grantees under the schemes shall automatically 
stand augmented or reduced, as the case may be, in 
the same proportion as the present face value of ` 

division or consolidation, without affecting any other 
rights or obligations of the said allottees.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is 

variations, alterations or revisions in the said schemes 

absolute discretion in conformity with the provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 or any amendment 
thereof, the Memorandum and Articles of Association 
of the Company and any other applicable laws.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Kailash Katkar, 

Managing Director & CTO of the Company be and 
hereby are singly authorised to decide on the price 
per stock option and has a right to decide on variation 
in stock option price.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Kailash Katkar, 

Managing Director & CTO of the Company be and 
hereby are singly authorised to do all such acts, deeds 
and things necessary in this regard to give effect to 
the above resolution, to issue the stock options and 
to do all such acts in this regard. 

Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and in accordance with 

placed before the meeting and initialled by the 

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the Applicable Laws, 
approval of the members of the Company be and is 
hereby accorded to grant the stock options under 

permanent employees of the holding and subsidiary 
company(ies) and their director(s) whether whole time 
director or not but excluding independent directors, if 
any, from time to time, on such terms and conditions 
as may be decided by the Board which term shall be 
deemed to include any Committee, which the Board 
has constituted to exercise its powers.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in case of any corporate 
action (s) such as rights issues, bonus issues, merger 
and sale of division and others, if any additional 

Option Grantees for the purpose of making a fair and 
reasonable adjustment to the options granted earlier 
shall be deemed to be increased to the extent of such 

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is 

upon exercise of options from time to time in 
accordance with the employee stock option scheme 

Company.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT

consolidated, then the number of shares to be allotted 

grantees under the schemes shall automatically 
stand augmented or reduced, as the case may be, in 
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the same proportion as the present face value of ` 

division or consolidation, without affecting any other 
rights or obligations of the said allottees.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is 

variations, alterations or revisions in the said schemes 

absolute discretion in conformity with the provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 or any amendment 
thereof, the Memorandum and Articles of Association 
of the Company and any other applicable laws.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Kailash Katkar, 

Managing Director & CTO of the Company be and 
hereby are singly authorised to decide on the price 
per stock option and has a right to decide on variation 
in stock option price.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Kailash Katkar, 

Managing Director & CTO of the Company be and 
hereby are singly authorised to do all such acts, deeds 
and things necessary in this regard to give effect to 
the above resolution, to issue the stock options and 
to do all such acts in this regard.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Kailash Katkar 
(DIN: 00397191)

Pune, 11th May 2016

NOTES

the Companies Act, 2013, with respect to the Special 
Business to be transacted at the 21st Annual General 
Meeting (the ‘Meeting’) is annexed hereto.

2. Pursuant to SS–2 i.e. Secretarial Standard on General 
Meetings as issued by the Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India, the route map for reaching the 
Meeting venue showing the prominent landmarks is 
given elsewhere in this Notice. Further, the Company 
has uploaded the above route map on its website at 

4. A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members 

more than ten per cent of the total share capital of the 
Company carrying voting rights. A member holding 
more than ten per cent of the total share capital of the 
Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single 
person as a proxy and such person shall not act as a 
proxy for any other shareholder.

authorizing their representative to attend and vote at 
the Annual General Meeting.

attendance slips to be deposited with the Company 

7. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only 
such joint holder who is higher in the order of names 
will be entitled to vote.

8. Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying 
Notice and the Statement are open for inspection 

Company on all working days, except Saturdays, 
during business hours up to the date of the Meeting.

Members and Share Transfer Books from Monday, 
25th July 2016, to Wednesday, 28th July 2016 
(both days inclusive), for determining the names 

st March 2016.

10. Subject to the provisions of Section 126 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, dividend as recommended 
by the Board of Directors, if declared at the meeting, 
will be payable on or before Wednesday, 31st August 
2016, to those Members whose name appears in the 
Register of Members during the abovementioned 
book closure period.

11. Members holding shares in electronic form may 
note that bank particulars registered against 
their respective demat accounts during the 
abovementioned book closure period will be used by 
the Company for payment of dividend. The Company 
or its Registrar and Share Transfer Agents, M/s. Link 
Intime India Private Limited (“Link Intime”) cannot act 

holding shares in electronic form for any change of 
bank particulars or bank mandates. Such changes 
are to be advised only to the respective Depository 
Participant of the Members.
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12. Members holding shares in electronic form are 

their address or bank mandates to their Depository 
Participants with whom they are maintaining 
their demat accounts. Members holding shares in 

their address or bank mandates immediately to the 
Company / Link Intime.

has mandated the submission of Permanent Account 
Number (PAN) by every participant in the securities 
market. Members holding shares in electronic form 

their Depository Participants with whom they are 
maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding 
shares in physical form can submit their PAN to the 
Company / Link Intime.

inform Link Intime, immediately of: a) Change in their 
residential status on return to India for permanent 
settlement. b) Particulars of their bank account 
maintained in India with complete name, branch, 
account type, account number and address of the 
bank with pin code number, if not furnished earlier.

15. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial 
Personnel and their shareholding, maintained under 
Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013, will be 
available for inspection by the Members at an Annual 
General Meeting.

16. Information and other instructions relating to 

a. In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as 
amended by the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 and Clause 
35B of the Listing Agreement, the Company is pleased 
to provide members facility to exercise their right 
to vote on resolutions proposed to be considered 
at the Annual General Meeting (AGM by electronic 
means and the business may be transacted through 

by the members using an electronic voting system 
from a place other than venue of the AGM (“remote 

Services Limited (CDSL).

b. The facility for casting the vote through Ballot 
Paper will be made available at the Meeting and the 
Members attending the Meeting who have not casted 

to cast their vote at the Meeting through Ballot paper

c. The Members who have casted their vote by remote 

entitled to cast their vote again. In case any Member 
casts his / her vote through Ballot to be conducted at 

and vote casted through Ballot shall be considered as 
invalid.

shares registered in the name of the Member / 

th July 2016.

e. A person, whose name is recorded in the Register 

i.e. Friday, 29th July 2016 only shall be entitled to avail 

a.m. (IST) on Tuesday, 2nd August 2016 and ends 
on Thursday, 4th August 2016 at 5:00 p.m. (IST). 
During this period, Members of the Company, holding 
shares either in physical form or in dematerialized 

th July 2016, 

thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the 
Member, the Member shall not be allowed to change 

under:

 (i) The voting period begins on 2nd August 2016 
at 12.01 a.m. and ends on 4th August 2016 at 
5.00 p.m. During this period shareholders’ of 
the Company, holding shares either in physical 

off date (record date) of 29th July 2016 may 

module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting 
thereafter.

website www.evotingindia.com.

 (iii) Click on Shareholders.

  b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 
Digits Client ID, 

  c. Members holding shares in Physical Form 
should enter Folio Number registered with 
the Company.

and Click on Login.
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 (vi) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier 
voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used. 

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form
PAN

both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

Dividend Bank Details 
OR Date of Birth (DOB) demat account or in the company records in order to login.

your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your 

modify your vote.

 (xv) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the 
resolution, you will not be allowed to modify 
your vote.

 (xvi) You can also take a print of the votes cast by 
clicking on “Click here to print” option on the 

 (xvii) If a demat account holder has forgotten the 

Password & enter the details as prompted by 
the system.

 
 (xviii) Shareholders can also cast their vote using 

be downloaded from Google Play Store. Apple 
and Windows phone users can download the 
app from the App Store and the Windows 
Phone Store respectively on or after 30th 
June 2016. Please follow the instructions as 
prompted by the mobile app while voting on 
your mobile.

 (xix) Note for Non – Individual Shareholders and 
Custodians

 

and register themselves as Corporates.

 A scanned copy of the Registration Form 
bearing the stamp and sign of the entity 
should be emailed to helpdesk.evoting@
cdslindia.com.

 (viii) After entering these details appropriately, click 

 (ix) Members holding shares in physical form will 
then directly reach the Company selection 
screen. However, members holding shares in 
demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ 

enter their login password in the new 

is to be also used by the demat holders for 
voting for resolutions of any other company 
on which they are eligible to vote, provided 

platform. It is strongly recommended not to 
share your password with any other person 
and take utmost care to keep your password 

 (x) For Members holding shares in physical form, 

resolutions contained in this Notice.

Name> on which you choose to vote.

that you assent to the Resolution and option 
NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

wish to view the entire Resolution details.

 (xiv) After selecting the resolution you have decided 
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 After receiving the login details a Compliance 

be able to link the account(s) for which they 
wish to vote on.

 The list of accounts linked in the login should 
be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com 
and on approval of the accounts they would 
be able to cast their vote. 

 A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and 
Power of Attorney (POA) which they have 
issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should 
be uploaded in PDF format in the system for 
the scrutinizer to verify the same.

available at www.evotingindia.com, under help 
section or write an email to helpdesk.evoting@
cdslindia.com.

17. 

appointment vide item no. 3 and 4 is as follows:

Particulars Mr. Sanjay Sahebrao Katkar Mr. Shailesh Lakhani
DIN 00397277 03567739
Date of Birth 29/11/1970 16/09/1978
Date of Appointment 17/08/1995 24/09/2015

Master’s Degree in Computer Science Master’s degree in Business 
Administration from Harvard 
business School

He has been associated with our 
Company since its incorporation and 
has experience in development of 

services.

He has worked at Red knee.

Directorship held in other listed entities Nil Nil
Membership/Chairmanship of Committees 
of listed entities (includes on Audit 
committee & Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee)

Nil Nil

Number of Shares held in the Company 20511384 Nil
Relationship with any Director (s) of the 
Company

Mr. Kailash Sahebrao Katkar Nil

18. Members desiring any information as regards 

the Company at an early date so as to enable the 
management to keep the information ready.

19. Members who wish to claim dividends, which 

encashed or claimed within seven years from the 

and Protection Fund maintained by the Government 
of India.

20. As a measure of austerity and green initiatives of 
the Company, copies of Annual Report will not be 
distributed at the Annual General Meeting.

21. With a view to take “Green Initiative in the Corporate 
Governance” by allowing paperless compliances 
by the companies, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
(the ‘Ministry’) has allowed companies to share 
documents with Members through electronic 
communication. It is a welcome move for the society 
at large, as this will reduce paper consumption to a 
great extent and allow public at large to contribute 
towards a greener environment. This is a golden 
opportunity for every Member to support the initiative 
of the Ministry. To support initiative of the Ministry 
and in view of Green Movement, the Company will 
henceforth propose to send documents to Members 

Members with their respective depositories. In case 

be registered, they may please update the same with 
their respective Depository Participant. Registering 

promptly, reduce paper consumption and save trees, 
eliminate wastage of paper, avoid loss of document 
in postal transit and save costs on paper and on 
postage. The Company will also make available a 
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Company’s website.

relating to shares, including dividend matters to the 
Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent at the 
following address: Link Intime India Private Limited 

Floor, Akshay Complex, Off Dhole Patil Road, Pune 
411 001, India Tel.: +91 (20) 2616 1629 / 2616 0084 

co.in Website: www.linkintime.co.in

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 
102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item No. 6 
As per the provisions of Section 188 (1) (f) and other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read 

Mrs. Anupama Katkar, who is relative of Mr. Kailash 

be placed before the shareholders in general meeting 
and, the approval of the members is sought through the 
accompanying resolution.

Your Directors recommend the above Resolutions for your 
approval.

Other than Mr. Kailash Katkar and Mr. Sanjay Katkar, none 
of the other Directors of the company is/are in any way 
concerned or interested in the Resolution except to the 
extent of their shareholdings.

Item No. 7
As per the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 
2014, the Cost Records to be maintained by the Company 
for applicable products manufactured by the Company. 

As per the Captioned Rules, it is proposed to appoint Mr. 
Bhavesh Marolia, Practitioner Cost accountant, proprietor 
of M/s Bhavesh Marolia & Associates, as Cost Auditors for 
maintenance of cost records, examination and report to 
the company in respect of the products covered under the 

1985 as mentioned in the said Rules.

Your Directors recommend the above Resolutions for your 
approval.

None of the other Directors of the company is/are in any 
way concerned or interested in the Resolutions except to 
the extent of their shareholdings.

Item No. 8 - 9

to be placed before the shareholders in general meeting 
and, the approval of the members is sought through the 
accompanying special resolution.

The main features of the employee stock option schemes 
are as under:

The Company appreciates the critical role its people play 
in the organizational growth.  It strongly feels that the 
value created by its people should be shared by them.  
To promote the culture of employee ownership in the 
company, approval of the shareholders is being sought for 
issue of stock options to the employees of the company.  
Scheme is administered by the Company through Board 
which includes Committee.

1. Total number of options to be granted:

Particulars ESOP 2010 ESOP 2014
Total No of 
Options

14,80,000 8,00,000

Total No of 
Options Granted 
as on the date of 
notice

14,53,696 5,45,801

Balance No of 
Options as on 
the date of the 
notice

26,304 2,54,199

Options would be granted to eligible employees of the 

` 10 

options that get cancelled due to resignation of the 

granted at a future date.  

A fair and reasonable adjustment needs to be made to the 
options granted in case of any corporate action (s) such 
as rights issues, bonus issues, merger and sale of division 

issued by the Company to the Option Grantees for making 

shares shall be deemed to be increased to the extent of 
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participate in the Employee Stock Option Scheme(s): 

 All present and future, permanent employees of 
the holding and subsidiary company(ies) and their 
director(s) whether whole time director or not but 
excluding independent directors, if any, from time to 
time but excluding the promoters of the Company, 
as may be decided by the Board from time to time, 
would be entitled to be granted stock options under 

3. Transferability of employee stock options
 The stock options granted to an employee will not be 

transferable to any person and shall not be pledged, 
hypothecated, mortgaged or otherwise alienated in 
any manner.  However, in the event of the death of an 
employee stock option holder while in employment, 
the right to exercise all the options granted to him 
till such date shall be transferred to his legal heirs or 
nominees. 

4. Requirements of vesting and period of vesting:
 The Options granted shall vest so long as the 

employee continues to be in the employment of the 
Company. The Board may, at its discretion, lay down 
certain performance metrics on the achievement of 
which the granted options would vest, the detailed 

based vesting, and the proportion in which options 
granted would vest (subject to the minimum and 

 The options would vest not earlier than one year and 

options.  The exact proportion in which and the exact 
period over which the options would vest would be 
determined by the Board, subject to the minimum 
vesting period of one year from the date of grant of 
options. 

5. Exercise Price:
 The options would be granted at an exercise price 

Regulations.

6. Exercise Period and the process of Exercise: 

from the date of vesting of options.

a written application to the Company to exercise the 
options in such manner, and on execution of such 
documents, as may be prescribed by the Board from 
time to time. The options will lapse if not exercised 

7. Appraisal Process for determining the eligibility of 
the employees to ESOP:

 The appraisal process for determining the eligibility of 

be based on criteria such as role / designation of the 
employee, length of service with the Company, past 
performance record, future potential of the employee 
and/or such other criteria that may be determined by 
the Board at its sole discretion.

8. Maximum number of options to be issued per 
employee and in aggregate: 

 The number of options that may be granted to any 

1% of the issued capital (excluding outstanding 
warrants and conversions) of the Company at the 
time of grant of options.

9. Disclosure and Accounting Policies: 
 The Company shall comply with the disclosure and 

the accounting policies prescribed.

10. Method of option valuation
 To calculate the employee compensation cost, the 

valuation of the options granted.  

 The difference between the employee compensation 
cost computed using the Intrinsic value method and 
the cost that shall have been recognized if it had 

in the Directors’ Report and also the impact of this 

shall also be disclosed in the Directors’ Report.

 As the employee stock option schemes provide for 
issue of shares to be offered to persons other than 
existing shareholders of the company, consent of the 
members is being sought pursuant to the Provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 or any amendment 
thereof and all other applicable provisions, if any, of 
the Act.

None of the Directors of the Company are in any way, 
concerned or interested in the resolution, except to the 
extent of the securities that may be offered to them under 
the scheme.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Kailash Katkar 
(DIN: 00397191)

Pune, 11th May 2016
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Dear Members,

The Directors of Quick Heal Technologies Limited are pleased to present the 21st Annual Report and the audited accounts 
st March 2016.

1. Business Operations and Prospects

substantial pace.

` `

2. New Branches
 

Sr. 
No.

Company/Management/ Date of Award/Recognition/

1

2

March 2016
6 March 2016

AWARDS
Sr. 
No.

Award/Recognition/ Date of Award/

1 12th

 
1. 

2. 

2
 

Quick Heal Technologies Limited 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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                                                                                                                                        In Rupees

3,478,738,911 2,943,371,179

Depreciation and Amortization

 

held on 11th

st March 2016, the total institutional holding 

share capital.

st March 2016. Your 

audited annual accounts and related information 

st March 2016 are prepared 

the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, and 
form part of this Annual Report.
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Director

18. Statutory Auditors

th

th

summarized in the Notes forming part of Financial 

 

14. Board Meetings

th th April, 
th th st August, 

th th

rd th

 

 

appointment. 

Directors about their roles, rights, responsibilities 

composition and meetings of the Committees of the 

S.  
No

Committee Chairperson

1 *Audit Committee
2 Nomination and Remuneration Committee

19. Cost Auditors
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in the Board Meeting held on 11th

remuneration of `
members.

held on 11th

detailed compliance report as stipulated under the 

being in force forms an integral part of this Report.

Report.

 

  

  

  

in Rupees

ended 31st ended 31st 

st

Date of Registration
As on  

31st

As on  
31st

Quick Heal Technologies Africa Limited 2nd December 2011
Quick Heal Technologies America, Inc 2nd

2nd April 2012
th
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Quick Heal Technologies Africa 

Quick Heal Technologies 

Quick Heal Technologies  

Quick Heal Technologies 

Annual Report. 

th

2016. The particulars of contracts entered during the 

 

an ethical business partner that customers can 
count on.

 

th

 

operation.  

 

 
donated `
the total amount of `

 

`

 

 The Board is responsible for establishing and 

and completeness of accounting records and the 
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going concern basis; 

 

 Your Board places on record the help and the sincere 

end users, dealers, distributors, business partners, 

th

 Report on Risk Management based on the risk 

part of this Annual Report.

and Directors

33. Other matters
 Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting 

subsidiaries.

impact the going concern status and the 

st March, 2016, the applicable 

departures; 

and estimates that are reasonable and prudent 

same period; 

of the compan
fraud and other irregularities; 
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st

     
 

th

S. 
No. Designation

Remuneration 
of Director / 

`

% increase in 
Remuneration  

in the  

Ratio of 
Remuneration 

of each Director 
to the Median 
remuneration  

Comparison of the 
remuneration of the KMP 
against the performance 
of the Company

1  

2  

 

 
Nil Nil Nil

 
Independent Director Nil 0.60

6  
Independent Director Nil 1.20

 
Independent Director 0.60 Nil 1.20

 
Independent Director Nil 0.60

9  
Not Applicable

10  
1.09 Not Applicable
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`

st

st

`
to ` `
`

B. `

of `

Name Designation Age  
(Yrs)

Joining  
Date (Yrs)

Nature of 
Employment

*Total 
Remuneration
(in Rs. Million)

Previous 
Employment

Relationship 
with any 

Company

Kailash 
Katkar

Managing 
Director &  
CEO

Matriculate 48 17th 

August1995
29 Permanent 11.44 Promoter Brother of Mr. 

Sanjay Katkar

Sanjay 
Katkar

Managing 
Director &  
CTO

Master in Computer  
Science

44 17th 

August1995
20 Permanent 11.44 Promoter Brother of Mr. 

Kailash Katkar

Abhijit 
Jorvekar

Executive 
Director 

BE (Electronics), 
MBA  
(Marketing & IT)

41 26th December 
2002

17 Permanent 11.92 Modular 
Infotech Pvt. 
Ltd.

No

Rajesh 
Ghonasgi 

Chief  
Financial 

B.Com; FCA; ACS. 53 2nd September 
2013

28 Permanent 14.78 Komli Media No
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st

Total options granted Total options granted 

` ` 110.00 ` 110.00 to ` 119.00

Variation in terms of options Nil Nil
Nil Nil

Nil Nil

Nil Nil

`

`
`

the market price of the stock

`69.91 `112.16

the option   
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Vesting schedule

Nil

Nil Nil

NA NA

Name of director/ Key 
options granted

No. of options No. of options 
forfeited of options 

outstanding*

 26,000    
12,000  9,000

 

* Options are vested based on the performance of the employee

Name of director/ Key 
options granted

No. of options No. of options 
forfeited of options 

outstanding*

2,000
2,000

* Options are vested based on the performance of the employee
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st

To,
The Members

st st

opinion thereon. 

st 

st

during the Audit Period] 
[Not 

the Audit Period]
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Directors and Independent Directors.

At Par/ At Premium
At premium of `

26,000 At premium of `
At premium of `100 per share
At premium of `100 per share

th

th

th

of this report.
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To,
The Members

reasonable basis for our opinion.

th

Sr. 
No.
1

AD.
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Sr.  
No.

Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

Contract 1

Sr.  
No. 

Nature of Relation ship
Lease Deed

or transactions

th

11th

`

Contract 2

Sr.  
No. 

Nature of Relation ship
Lease Deed

or transactions

th

11th

`
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Contract 3
Sr.  
No. 

Nature of Relation ship

Lease Deed

or transactions

th

11th

`

Contract 4
Sr.  
No. 

Nature of Relation ship

Lease Deed

or transactions

th

11th

`

Sr.  
No. 

Nature of Relation ship
Lease Deed

or transactions

th

11th

` 0.96
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Sr. 
No.
1

undertaken 
2

 

 

 

 
No. programs 

or other

the state 
and district 

programs 

undertaken 

Amount 

programs 

Amount spent 

programs 
1. 
Direct on 

programs
2. 

upto the 
reporting 
period

Amount 
spent Direct 
or through 
implementing 

Maharashtra Through 
Quick Heal 
Foundation
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CIN

Registration Date th

Quick Heal Technologies Limited

th Floor, 

Yes

Sr. 
No.

NIC Code of the Product /
company

1
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Sr. 
No. Associate

% of share  
Section

1
The Companies 

2
The Companies 

Quick Heal Technologies Africa Ltd 

st

Nkrumah Road, Mombasa

The Companies 

Quick Heal Technologies America 101019922
The Companies 

Category of  
of the year

 
of the year

% Change 
during the 

year
Demat

Shares
Demat

Shares

1 Indian -

a.
HUF

–

b. –

c. –

d. Bodies 
Corporate

–

e. –

-

2 Foreign

a. –

b. –

c. Bodies 
Corporate

–

–

–

–

-
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Category of  
of the year

 
of the year

% Change 
during the 

year
Demat

Shares
Demat

Shares

1 Institutions –

a. Mutual Funds –

b. –

c. –

d. –

e. Venture Capital 
Funds

–

f. Insurance 
Companies

–

g. FIIs –

h. Foreign Venture 
Capital funds

–

i.
Co.

–

-

2
institutions

a. Bodies Corp. 

b.

shareholders 
holding

nominal share 

Lakh

1 –

shareholders 
holding

nominal share 
capital in 

Lakh

–

c. –

Clearing 
Member

–

NBFCs 

RBI

–

Foreign 
National

–

NRI 0.02 –

Hindu –
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Category of  
of the year

 
of the year

% Change 
during the 

year
Demat

Shares
Demat

Shares

Trust –

-

1 -

–

100.00 1 100.00 –

Sr. 
No.

  
the end of the year

% Change 
during the 

year

No. of  
Shares shares of  

the 
Company

% of shares 

shares

No. of 
Shares shares of  

the 
Company

% of shares 

shares

1 29.29

2 29.29
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Sr 
No.

No of Shares  
end of the year

No. of 
Shares shares of the 

company

Increase Decrease No. of 
Shares shares of the 

company

1

2.

900,000 900,000 1.29

Reliance Capital Trustee Co. 

fund

6. Reliance Life Insurance 

Fund

9.

10.

Sr 
No.

No of Shares  
end of the year

No. of 
Shares shares of the 

company

Increase Decrease No. of 
Shares shares of the 

company

1 29.29

2 29.29

0.22
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INR million

Sr. 
No

Name of Director Designation Remuneration 

1.

2.

INR million

Sr. 
No

Name of Director Designation Remuneration 

1. Independent Director

2. Independent Director

Independent Director 0.60

Independent Director

INR million

Sr. 
No

Name of Director Designation Remuneration 

1.

2. 1.09
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In accordance with Schedule V Clause C and other 
applicable clauses of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“LODR, 
2015”), the report containing the details of Corporate 
Governance systems and processes at Quick Heal 
Technologies Limited (“Quick Heal” or “Company”) is as 
follows:

1. Company’s philosophy on the code of corporate 
governance: 

 Your Company recognizes communication as a 
key element of the overall corporate governance 
framework and therefore, emphasizes on seamless 

external constituencies. Your Company follows the 
principles of fair representation and full disclosure in 
all its dealings and communications. The Company’s 
annual reports, results presentations and other forms 

extensive details and convey important information 
on a timely basis. Your Company’s philosophy on 
corporate governance envisages the attainment of 
the highest levels of transparency, accountability 
and equity, in all facets of its operations and in 
all its interactions with its stakeholders including 
shareholders, employees, government and lenders. 
The Company believes that all its operations and 
actions must serve the underlying goal of enhancing 
overall Shareholders value, over a sustained period of 
time. 

2. Board of Directors: 
 (i) Composition of Board 
  The Company’s policy is to maintain optimum 

combination of Executive and Non-Executive 
Directors. The Board of Directors presently 
consists of eight Directors as detailed hereunder 
indicating their status as independent or 
otherwise against their respective names: 

Executive Directors

Sr. 
No.

Name of the Director Designation Category

1. Mr. Kailash Sahebrao Katkar Managing Director & CEO Promoter
2. Mr. Sanjay Sahebrao Katkar Managing Director & CTO Promoter
3. Mr. Abhijit Jorvekar Executive Director Non-Independent

Non Executive (Non-Independent) Directors

Sr. 
No.

Name of the Director Designation Category

1. Mr.  Shailesh Lakhani Non-executive Director Non-Independent, 
Professional

Non Executive (Independent ) Directors

Sr. 
No.

Name of the Director Designation Category

1. Mr. Pradeep Vasudeo bhide Director Independent Director
2. Mr. Sunil Vikram Sethy Director Independent Director
3. Mr. Mehul Mulchand Savla Director Independent Director
4. Ms. Apurva Pradeep Joshi Director Independent Director

Except Mr. Kailash Sahebrao Katkar, Managing Director & CEO and Mr. Sanjay Sahebrao Katkar, Managing Director & CTO, 
none of our Directors are related to each other.

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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 (ii) Independent Directors 
  Your Company had at its last Annual General 

Meeting (AGM) held on 24th September, 2015 
appointed Mr. Pradeep Vasusdeo Bhide,  
Mr. Sunil Vikram Sethy, Mr. Mehul Savla & Ms. 
Apurva Pradeep Joshi as Independent Directors 
pursuant to Sections 149, 152 and Schedule IV 
and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules issued 
thereunder and as per LODR, 2015. The tenure all 

  The Company has received declarations as 
stipulated under Section 149(7) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and as per the applicable clause(s) of 
LODR, 2015 from each Independent Directors 

Director. Your Company had also issued formal 
appointment letters to all the Independent 
Directors in the manner provided under the 
Companies Act, 2013 and LODR, 2015. The 
terms and conditions of the appointment of 

Independent Directors have been displayed on 
the website of the Company and can be accessed 

 (iii) Board Meetings 
  

Board meetings were held on 08th April, 2015, 
24th April, 2015, 27th July, 2015, 17th August, 
2015, 21st August, 2015, 4th September, 2015, 
24th September, 2015, 3rd November, 2015 &  
4th

between any two meetings did not exceed one 
hundred twenty days. 

 (iv) Attendance of Directors, other Directorships and 
other details 

  Attendance of Directors at the Board Meetings, 
last Annual General Meeting and number of 

of Committee(s) in other companies are given 
below: 

Name of the
Director

No of Board 
Meeting  
attended

Attendance  
at last AGM

No. of Directorships 
held in other public 

companies #

No. of Memberships 
(M)/ Chairpersonships 

(C) in other board 
Committee(s)^

Mr. Kailash Sahebrao Katkar 09 Yes Nil 0(C), 02(M)
Mr. Sanjay Sahebrao Katkar 09 Yes Nil Nil
Mr. Abhijit Jorvekar 09 Yes Nil Nil
Mr. Shailesh Lakhani 03 No Nil Nil
Mr. Pradeep Vasudeo Bhide* 02 No 07 03(C), 07(M)
Mr. Mehul Mulchand Savla* 02 No Nil 0(C), 01(M)
Mr. Sunil Vikram Sethy* 03 Yes 03 03(C), 04(M)
Ms. Apurva Pradeep Joshi* 04 Yes Nil 0(C), 01(M)

*Mr. Pradeep Vasudeo Bhide, Mr. Sunil Vikram Sethy & Ms. Apurva Joshi were appointed as an additional Director in the 
Independent Category on 21st August, 2015 and designation of Mr. Mehul Mulchand Savla was changed to independent 
director on 21st August, 2015. All Four independent Director’s position was regularised in the AGM dated: 24th September, 
2015

# No. of Directorships held in other public companies does not include Foreign Companies.

None of the Directors on the Board is a Director in more than 20 companies (including not more than 10 Public Limited 

Independent Director in more than 7 Listed Companies and Member of more than 10 Committees and Chairman of more 
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 (v) Board Meetings, its Committee Meetings and 
Procedures thereof: 

 A. Scheduling and selection of agenda items for 
Board Meetings 

  (i) The Company holds minimum four Board 
Meetings every year. Apart from the four 
Board Meetings, additional Board Meetings 
are also convened as and when required to 

by giving appropriate notice to the Directors. 
The Board also approves permitted urgent 
matters by passing the resolutions through 
circulation. 

  (ii) The meetings are usually held at the 

Nagar, Pune. 

are encouraged to plan their functions 
well in advance, particularly with regard 

All such matters are communicated to the 
Company Secretary in advance so that the 
same could be included in the agenda of the 
Board meetings. 

  (iv) The Board is given presentations on 

business segments and operations of the 
Company, while considering the results of 
the Company at each of the pre-scheduled 
Board meeting. 

  (v) The Company Secretary in consultation 

Directors and other concerned persons in 

papers for the Board meetings. 

 B. Board material distributed in advance 
  (i) Agenda papers are circulated to the 

agenda format. All material information 
is incorporated in the agenda papers for 
facilitating meaningful, informed and 

it is not practicable to attach any document 
to the agenda, the same is placed on the 

to this effect in the agenda.

directors present at the meeting, additional 
or supplementary item(s) in the agenda are 
taken up for discussion and consideration. 
Sensitive subject matters may be discussed 
at the meeting without written material 
being circulated in advance for the meeting. 

 C. Recording minutes of proceedings at Board 
meeting 

  The Company Secretary records the minutes of 
the proceedings of each Board and Committee 
Meetings. The minutes of the proceedings of a 
meeting are entered in the minutes book within 
thirty days from the conclusion of the meeting 

Committee Meeting. 

 D. Post meeting follow up mechanism
  There is an effective post meeting follow-up, 

review and reporting process for the action taken 
on decisions of the Board and Committees. 

 E. Compliance
  The Company Secretary, while preparing the 

agenda, notes on agenda, minutes etc. of the 
meeting(s) and holding and conducting the 
meetings, is responsible for and is required to 
ensure adherence to material provisions of all 
applicable laws. 

  (vi) Familiarization Programme for Board 
Members including Independent Directors

 
   The Board members are provided with 

and internal policies to enable them to 
familiarize with Company’s procedures and 
practices. 

   Periodic presentations are made at the Board 
and Board Committee meetings, on business 
and performance updates of the Company, 
global business environment, business 
strategy and risks involved. The Company 

Senior Managerial Personnel conducts 

familiarize the Independent Directors with 
the strategy, operations and functions of 
the Company and to appraise them about 
their roles, rights and responsibilities in the 
Company to enable them to make effective 
contribution and discharge their functions 
as a Board Member. 
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   The Independent Directors are given every 

Management Personnel and are given all 
the documents sought by them for enabling 
a good understanding of the Company, 
its various operations and the industry of 
which it is a part.

   The familiarization programme for 
Independent Directors in terms of the 
provisions of LODR, 2015 is uploaded on 
the website of the Company and can be 

  (vii) Independent Directors’ meeting 
   In accordance with the provisions of 

Schedule IV (Code for Independent 
Directors) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
as per applicable Clauses of LODR, 2015, 
a meeting of the Independent Directors of 
the Company was held on 22nd

without the presence of Non-Independent 
Directors and representatives of the 
management. 

  (viii) Evaluation of Board Effectiveness 
   In terms of the provisions of the Companies 

Act, 2013 read with Rules issued 
thereunder and as per applicable Clauses 
of LODR, 2015, the Board of Directors, on 
recommendation of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee, have evaluated 
the effectiveness of the Board. Accordingly, 
the performance evaluation of the Board, 
each Director and the Committees was 

31st

Company. The evaluation of the Directors 
was based on various aspects, inter-alia, 
included the level of participation in the 
Board Meetings, understanding of their 
roles and responsibilities, business of the 
Company along with the environment and 
effectiveness of their contribution. 

   The purpose of the Board evaluation 
is to achieve persistent and consistent 
improvement in the governance of the 
Company at the Board level with the 
participation of all concerned in an 
environment of harmony. The Board 
acknowledges its intention to establish and 
follow best practices in Board Governance 

to the Company. The Board believes the 
evaluation will lead to a closer working 

relationship among the Board members, 

time and increased effectiveness of the 
Board as a governing body. 

3. Board Committees 
 The Committees constituted by the Board plays a 

very important role in the governance structure of 
the Company. The composition and the terms of 
reference of these Committees are approved by the 
Board and are in line with the requirement of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and as per applicable Clauses of 
LODR, 2015. The minutes of the Committee meetings 
are placed at the Board meetings. Currently(i.e. 31st 

of the Directors viz. Audit Committee, Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility 
Committee, IPO Committee.

 (i) Audit Committee 
  Terms of Reference: 
  The “Terms of Reference” of the Audit Committee 

are in conformity with the provisions of Section 
177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) 
Rules, 2014 and as per applicable Clauses of 
LODR, 2015.

  Composition and Attendance: 
  The composition of the Audit Committee is in 

conformity with the provisions of Section 177 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and as per applicable 
Clauses of LODR, 2015. Two meetings of the 

ended 31st

Dates of the meetings and the number of Members 
attended are given below:

Sr. 
No.

Date of the Meeting Number of Members 
Attended

1. 3rd November, 2015 3
2. 4th 3

Names of Members of the Committee and their attendance 
at the Meetings are given below:

Name Status Number of Meetings 
Attended

Mr. Sunil Vikram Sethy Chairman 2
Mr. Kailash Sahebrao 
Katkar

Member 2

Ms. Apurva Pradeep 
Joshi

Member 2
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Committee meetings and the Company Secretary acts as 
the Secretary of the Committee.

Whistle Blower Policy – Vigil Mechanism

177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies 
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and Clause 
22 of the LODR, 2015.

for directors and employees to report genuine concerns 
or grievances. It encourages all employees, directors 
and business partners to report any suspected violations 

authority for reporting unethical behaviour, actual or 
suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of 
Conduct or ethics policy or any other unethical or improper 

victimization of employees and directors who avail of the 
vigil mechanism and also provide for direct access to the 
Chairperson of the Audit Committee, in exceptional cases. 

 (ii) Nomination and Remuneration Committee: 
  Terms of Reference:
  The Terms of Reference of the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee are in conformity with 
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

  Composition and attendance:
  The Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

consists of three Directors, all being Independent. 
st March, 

and Remuneration Committee were held on  
04th

aforesaid meetings. 

Names of Members of the Committee and their attendance 
at the Meetings are given below:

Sr. 
No.

Name Status Number of 
Meetings 
Attended

1. Mr. Mehul Mulchand 
Savla

Chairman 1

2. Mr. Sunil Vikram Sethy Member 1
3. Ms. Apurva Pradeep 

Joshi
Member 1

Names of Members of the Committee and their attendance 
at the Meetings are given below:

Name Status Number of Meetings 
Attended

Mr. Mehul Mulchand 
Savla

Chairman 1

Mr. Sunil Vikram 
Sethy

Member 1

Ms. Apurva Pradeep 
Joshi

Member 1

Remuneration of Directors:
(a) all pecuniary relationship or transactions of the non-

executive directors vis-à-vis the listed entity shall be 
disclosed in the annual report of the Company.

(b) criteria of making payments to non-executive 
directors. alternatively, this may be disseminated on 
the Company’s website and reference drawn thereto 
in the annual report.

(a) Executive Directors

Sr.  
No.

Name of the 
Director

Gross 
salary(in `)

Commission/
Incentive(in `)

Contribution 
to PF (in `)

Other
(in `)

Total.
(in `)

Notice period

1 *Mr. Kailash 
Sahebrao Katkar

8,00,000 Nil Nil 11,44,00,000

2 *Mr. Sanjay 
Sahebrao Katkar

8,00,000 Nil Nil 11,44,00,000

3 Mr. Abhijit Jorvekar 34,00,800 25,00,000 1,19,42,400 Nil

* As per the Employment Agreement dated: 28th August, 2015, Mr. Kailash Sahebrao Katkar & Mr. Sanjay Sahebrao Katkar 
have been provided 1(one) Car each by the Company.
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(b) Non-Executive Director
 st

follows:

Sr. 
No.

Name of the Director *Sitting fees paid(in `)

1. Mr. PV Bhide
2. Mr. Sunil Sethy
3. Mr. Mehul Savla
4. Ms. Apurva Joshi

* mentioned sitting fees is exclusive of service tax.

Commission has been paid to the Independent Directors and mentioned in Annexure A to the Directors Report.

There has been no material pecuniary relationship or transactions between the Company and Non-Executive Directors 

There are no convertible instruments issued to any of the Non-Executive Directors of the Company. Nil equity shares of 
the Company are held by the Non-Executive Directors as on 31st

Stock Options granted to Directors 
In terms of ESOP, 2010 of the Company, Directors have been granted Stock Options (ESOPs) as mentioned below:

Sr. 
No

Name of the 
Director

No. of 
ESOP’s 

Granted on 
th June, 

No. of 
ESOP’s 

Granted 
th 

September, 

No. of 
ESOP’s 

Vested on 
1st July, 

No. of 
ESOP’s 

Vested on 
2nd July, 

No. of 
ESOP’s 

Vested on 
1st July, 

No. of 
ESOP’s 

Vested on 
1st July, 

No. of 
ESOP’s 
Vested 

th 
September, 

1. Mr. Abhijit 
Jorvekar

10000 38400 38400 38400 38400 2500

 (iii) Stakeholders Relationship Committee: 
  The Terms of Reference of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee are in conformity with Section 178 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 20 of the LODR, 2015.

  The Stakeholders Relationship Committee consists of three Directors, of which two are Independent and one 
is Executive Director. The Stakeholders Relationship Committee is headed by Mr. Pradeep Vasudeo Bhide, 

31st

  Pursuant to the LODR, 2015 and Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges, Mr. Vijay Shirode has been 

such as SEBI, Stock Exchanges, and Registrar of Companies etc. The Company complies with the various 
requirements of the LODR, 2015 & Listing Agreement and depositories with respect to transfer of shares and 

  The Committee looks into the grievances of the Shareholders related to transfer of shares, payment of dividend 
and non-receipt of annual report and recommends measure for expeditious and effective investor service etc.

 
  The Company has duly appointed Share Transfer Agent (R&T Agent) for servicing the shareholders holding 

shares in physical or dematerialized form. All requests for dematerialization of shares are likewise processed 

  During the year, Nil complaints were received as on 31st
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 (iv) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee: 
Terms of Reference: 

  The Terms of Reference of the Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee (“CSR Committee”) are 
in conformity with Section 135 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate 
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. 

  Composition: 
  The CSR Committee consists of three Directors, 

out of which one is Independent and two are 
Executive Directors.

  4(Four) Nos. of Meeting of CSR Committee were 

  Names of Members of the Committee and their 
status are given below:

Sr. 
No.

Name Status

1. Ms. Apurva Pradeep Joshi Chairman

2. Mr. Kailash Sahebrao Katkar Member
3. Mr. Sanjay Sahebrao Katkar Member

Dates of the meetings and the number of Members 
attended are given below:

Sr. 
No.

Date of Meeting Number of Members 
Attended

1. 8th May, 2015 2
2. 30th July, 2015 3
3. 4th September, 2015 3
4. 4th 3

Names of Members of the Committee and their attendance 
at the Meetings are given below:

Sr. 
No.

Name Status Number of 
Meetings 
Attended

1. Mr. Mehul Mulchand 
Savla

Chairman 1

2. Mr. Sunil Vikram Sethy Member 1
3. Ms. Apurva Pradeep 

Joshi
Member 1

* Mr. Abhijit Jorvekar was replaced by Ms. Apurva 
Pradeep Joshi on reconstitution of CSR Committee on  
24th September, 2015.

 The details of last three Annual General Meetings are mentioned below:

Sr.  
No.

Date of AGM Venue

1. 24th September, 2015
Pune – 411 014

2. 29th September, 2014
3. 13th September, 2013

Sr. 
No.

Financial  
Year

Date Day Time Number 
of Special 
resolution(s) 
Passed

Details of Special Resolution passed

1. 2014-15 24th September, 
2015

Thursday 04:00 
PM

2 (Two) 1. Initial public Offer & Offer for sale.
2. Increase in FII Limit.

2. 2013-14 29th September, 
2014

Monday 11:00 
AM

Nil Nil

3. 2012-13 13th September, 
2013

Friday 11:00 
AM

Nil Nil

st

There is no resolution proposed to be passed through postal ballot at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company.
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interests of Company at large. 

  The Company has not entered into any transaction of material nature with the promoters, the directors or the 
management, their subsidiaries or relatives etc. that may have any potential conflict with the interests of the 
Company. Related Party transactions are disclosed in the notes to Accounts forming part of this Annual Report. 

 (ii) Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties, and strictures imposed on the Company by Stock 
Exchange or SEBI or any statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets, during the last three 
years. 

  No penalties or strictures have been imposed on the Company by the stock exchanges or SEBI or any other 
statutory authorities relating to the above. 

 (iii) Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non-mandatory requirements of 
this clause 

  The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of LODR, 2015 

 (iv) Compliance with non-mandatory requirements (as on 31st  
  The Company has adopted following non-mandatory requirements of LODR, 2015. 

  (1) Shareholders’ Rights 
    The quarterly results will be posted on the website of the Company.

   

The Company continues to adopt best accounting practices.

i) Quarterly Results Since your Company got listed on 18th

exchanges after they are approved by the Board. These are also published in 
the Newspapers, in the prescribed format as per the provisions of the Listing 
Agreement. 

ii) Newspapers wherein 
results normally 
published

Financial Express, English Dainik Janshakti, Regional

iii) Any website, where 
displayed

www.quickheal.com 

iv) The Company gives important Press Releases.

v) The Presentations made 
to institutional investors 
or to the analysts

The Company holds Analysts’ Meet from time to time as required.

vi) NSE Electronic 
Application Processing 
System (NEAPS)

The NEAPS is a web based application designed by NSE for corporate. All periodical 

vii) BSE Corporate 
Compliance & Listing 
Centre (the ‘Listing 
Centre’)

BSE’s Listing Centre is a web based application designed for corporate. All 

viii) Corporate Filing and 
Dissemination System 
(CFDS)

The CFDS portal jointly owned, managed and maintained by BSE & NSE is a 

In particular, the Company informs BSE and NSE all price sensitive matters or such 
other matters which in its opinion are material and of relevance to the members.

ix) SEBI Complaint 
Redressal System 
(SCORES)

The investor complaints are processed in a centralized web based complaint 
redressal system. The salient features of this system are: 
Centralized Data Base of all complaints, online upload of Action Taken Report 
(ATRs) by the concerned companies and online viewing by investors of action taken 
on the complaint and its current status.
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7.   General Shareholders’ Information 

7.1 Annual  General Meeting: 
- Tentative Date and Time  
- Tentative Venue

5th

7.2 Financial Calendar  Annual General Meeting – (Next Year)

Financial Reporting August, 2017

February 2017
Results for year ending Mar. 31, 2017 (Audited) May 2017

7.3 Book Closure date : 25th th

Dividend Payment date: On or before 31st

Unclaimed Shares : Nil

(a) Listing  of  Equity          
Shares on  Stock 
Exchanges  

National Stock Exchange 
of India Limited.,
Exchange Plaza, 5th Floor,

Bandra-Kurla Complex,  
Bandra (E),
Mumbai – 400 051.

BSE Limited,
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,
Dalal Street,
Mumbai - 400 001

b) Listing of GDS on 
Stock Exchange

(c) Debenture Trustee: Not Applicable
7.7 Stock Code (Equity 

Shares) Trading Symbol – National Stock Exchange of India (Demat Segment): QUICKHEAL

Equity Shares:     

7.8 Stock Market Price Data National Stock Exchange of India 
Limited (NSE)

BSE Limited (BSE)

Month’s High 
Price (In `)

Month’s Low  
Price (In `)

Month’s High  
Price (In `)

Month’s Low 
Price (In `)

Note: Based on the Monthly closing data of BSE & NSE.
Registrar & Transfer 
Agents:  

Link Intime India Private Limited, Block No. 202, Second     
Floor, Akshay Complex, Off Dhole Patil Road, Pune 411 001, 

E-mail: pune@linkintime.co.in 

7.11 Share Transfer System: Share transfer requests for shares in physical form are registered within 10 – 15 

CDSL through the respective Depository Participants. 
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7.12 Distribution of shareholding as at 31st

By size of shareholding  Shareholders Equity shares held
Number Percentage (%) Number Percentage (%)

           1         -     5000 98.81 4491717
    5001        -     10000 0.55 357957 0.51
  10001        -     20000 225 0.27 0.48
  20001        -     30000 91 0.11 0.33
  30001        -     40000 34 0.04 121224 0.17
  40001        -     50000 28 0.03 127041 0.18
  50001        -     100000 40 0.05 291380 0.42
  100001     &    Above 114 0.14 91.50
TOTAL 100 70030028 100
Physical Mode 01 Negligible 01 Negligible
Electronic Mode 100 70030027 100.00

By category of shareholders Equity Shares held
Number of Shares Percentage(%)

Promoters 51030720 72.87
Clearing Member 0.88
Foreign Inst. Investor 940599 1.34
Hindu Undivided Family 314459 0.45

14070 0.02
Foreign venture Capital 5.23
Insurance Companies 1.74
Foreign Portfolio Investor 1302843
Other Bodies Corporate
Public 9.05
Total
7.13 Dematerialisation of shares 70,030,027 Nos of Shares has been dematerialised as on 31st

no. of Share was in Physical Form. Trading in equity shares of the Company is 
permitted only in dematerialized form.

Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/ 
Warrants or any convertible 
instruments, conversion 
dates and likely impact on 
equity.

Nil

Plant locations Nil
Investor Correspondence: 
For  transfer / 
dematerialisation of 
shares, payment of 
dividend on shares, query 
on Annual Report and any 
other query on the shares 
of the Company.

Block No. 202, Second Floor, Akshay Complex, Off Dhole Patil Road, Pune 411 
001, India

Shareholders holding shares in electronic mode should address all their correspondence relating to change of address, 
bank mandate and status to their respective Depository Participants (DPs).

Important Communication to Members: 
Members must be aware that Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has started a “Green Initiative in the Corporate 

are requested once again to register their email addresses in respect of their shareholding in electronic mode with the 
Depository Participants, including any change in their email id. Members holding shares in physical mode are requested 

8. OTHER INFORMATION  
 (a)  Risk Management Framework:
  The Company has in place mechanism to inform Board members about the risk assessment and minimization 

procedures and periodical reviews to ensure that risk is controlled by the executive management through the 
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 (c) Code of Conduct
  The Company has laid down a code of conduct for all Board members and senior management personnel of the 

Company. The code of conduct is available on the website of the Company. 

General Disclosures
(i) A summary of transactions with related parties in the ordinary course of business is periodically placed before the 

audit committee;
(ii) The mandatory disclosure of transactions with related parties in compliance with Accounting Standard AS-18 is a 

part of this annual report;
(iii) The Policy on Related Party Transactions and for determining Material Subsidiaries is disclosed and available in 

st

was different from that prescribed in the Accounting Standards;
(v) The Company has a Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information 

and a Code of Conduct to Regulate, Monitor and Report Trading by its employees and other connected persons, in 
accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015.

CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AS PER LODR (LISTING 

To 
The Members of Quick Heal Technologies Limited

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 pursuant to the Listing Agreement of the said Company with stock 
exchanges.

The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination 
was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the 

of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the 

chapter IV Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
pursuant to Listing Agreement of the said Company with stock exchanges.

or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

FOR J B BHAVE & CO.
COMPANY SECRETARIES
_
JAYAVANT BHAVE
PROPRIETOR

Place: Pune
Date : 11th
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to the best of our knowledge and belief:

 1) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain 
statements that might be misleading;

 2) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with 
existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

B. To the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which is 
fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct.

reporting.

Kailash Katkar  Rajesh Ghonasgi

Place: Pune
Date : 11th
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Overview: 
Quick Heal Technologies Ltd (“QUICK HEAL”) (Formerly 
Known as Quick Heal Technologies Pvt. Ltd.) is one of the 
leading IT security solutions company. Each Quick Heal 
product is designed to simplify IT security management 
across the length and depth of devices and on multiple 
platforms. They are customized to suit consumers, small 
businesses, Government establishments and corporate 
houses.

A number of practices and forms are adopted by the 
Management while taking decisions and monitoring 
performance, including functional and business review, 
which addresses current performance and future direction 
and changes thereto, as well as addressing potential 
risks. As a part of strengthening and institutionalising 
the decision making process and monitoring the 
exposures that are faced by QUICK HEAL, a formalised 
Risk Management System is being implemented on an 

Managing Risk is a skill that is sought to be strengthened 
through this process and an effort at making decision 
making more consistent in a way that the business 
objectives are met most of the times. The ERM process 

and thus enhance achievement of objectives. 

As a part of the Corporate Governance requirements 
under the Companies Act, 2013 and also under the Listing 
Agreement of the Stock Exchanges, there is a requirement 
for Public Listed Companies to have Risk Management 
Policy in place. 

QUICK HEAL is committed to ensuring:
 Sustainable business growth, 

 Safeguard of all STAKEHOLDER interests 

 Minimal surprises in performance due to internal and 
external business environment changes 

 Adherence to applicable regulatory requirements and

 Help business leaders and management decide on 
the rationale for either of;

 Taking the risk

 

sharing it with others or avoiding it altogether)

 

downside of accepting risks

 Periodic review of the afore-stated positions

The Risk Management Charter establishes a formal 
framework of Enterprise Risk Management in Quick 
Heal and is the basis for all ERM related activities in the 
organisation.  

The Charter complements and does not replace other 
existing compliance programs, such as control processes, 

internal and external reviews, etc. This charter is built on 
globally established principles of sound risk management.

Objective of Risk Management:
The Objective of Enterprise Risk Management is superior 
achievement of business goals through: 
- improved and consistent decision making taken by all 

in the organisation and
- a culture of thinking about the downside and upside 

of decision making based on judgment and data

In the process regulatory requirements for a Risk 
Management System and Policy are also sought to be 
complied. 

To realize the risk management objective, the Company 
aims to ensure that:

 

integrated in day to day management of the business

 

measurable scales of Consequence and Likelihood, 
continuously monitored and managed to an 
acceptable level,

 The escalation of risk information is timely, accurate 
and complete, to support decision making at all 
management levels.

Risk Management Process:
RISK IDENTIFICATION AND REVIEWS:

systematic process is critical, because a potential risk 

are under the control of the Company. 

Each Risk Owner must monitor the risks faced by the 

quarterly basis assess the risks that they face as a group 

RISK MANAGEMENT REPORT
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context realities and the Stakeholder objectives. It will not 

include a review of the changes in the environment. This 

amongst the group to identify new risks that may have 
emerged over a period of time. This review will include 
a documented analysis of the reasons for all successes 
and failures vis-à-vis the Objectives in the daily working 
or projects undertaken and identifying the learning for the 
future. 

RISK ASSESSMENT:
The risk will be assessed on qualitative two fold criteria. The 
two components of risk assessment are (a) the likelihood 
of occurrence of the risk event, and (b) the magnitude 
of impact if the risk event occurs. The combination of 
likelihood of occurrence and magnitude of impact provides 
the risk level. 

The magnitude of the impact of an event, should it 
occur and the likelihood of the event and its associated 
consequences, are assessed in 2 stages – 

1. Inherent Risk – Assessment before considering 
any action taken to mitigate the consequence or 
likelihood of risk. 

2. Residual or Controlled Risk – Assessment in the 
context of the existing controls that mitigate the 
consequence or likelihood of Risk. 

The impact and likelihood may be determined using 
statistical analysis and calculations. Alternatively, where 
no past data are available, subjective estimates may be 
made which reflect an employees, or group`s degree of 
belief that a particular event or outcome will occur.

RISK EVALUATION:
Impact and Likelihood are combined to produce a level 
of risk. For each risk, the score for likelihood and impact 
should be multiplied to arrive at combined score. The risk 

(value) that are:

1. Extreme 

2. High 

3. Cautionary &

4. Acceptable

RISK TREATMENT/ACTION PLAN:
Risk Treatment involves identifying the range of options 
for treating risk, assessing those options, preparing risk 
management plans and implementing them. Treatment 
options may include:

 Accepting the risk level within the established criteria

 Transferring the risk to other parties e.g. insurance

 

or policies and

 

consequences of risk event.

Action plans need to be time bound and responsibility 
driven to facilitate future status monitoring. Mitigating 
practices and controls shall include determining policies, 
procedure, practices and processes in place and additional 
resource allocation what will ensure that existing level of 
risks is brought down to an acceptable level. In many 

level through the risk treatment process. These residual 
risks need to be monitored. 

ESCALATION OF RISKS:
It is critical to institute an effective system of escalation 

communicated and followed up appropriately. Every 
employee of the Company has responsibility of identifying 
and escalating the risks to appropriate levels within the 
Company. This involves an assessment of controls to 
mitigate the risks. In case controls are not performing as 
designed or the proportion of deviation is high there is a 
need to reassess the Risk and also put in place a corrective 
program. The CRO and the Committee heads will determine 
whether the risk needs immediate escalation to next level 
or it can wait till subsequent periodic review.  

while reporting:

1. Strategic

2. Compliance

3. Operational

4. Financial
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Members of Quick Heal Technologies Limited
 
Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated 

Quick Heal Technologies Limited 

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated 
Financial Statements

making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 

 

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 

audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances 

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the 
audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms 

Opinion

Emphasis of Matter

`
`

on matter stated therein including legal opinion obtained 
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

and jointly controlled companies are incorporated in 

Other Matter

For S R B C & CO LLP

per Tridevlal Khandelwal 
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 

Notes  March 31, 2016 
` 

 March 31, 2015 
`

Equity and liabilities
Shareholders’ funds
Share capital 3

 6,069,253,234  3,314,401,408 
Current liabilities
Trade payables

and small enterprises

 1,084,727,661  965,302,267 
Total  7,153,980,895  4,279,703,675 
Assets
Non-current assets

    Tangible assets
    Intangible assets

8

11
 2,253,367,518  2,074,240,952 

Current assets    

Inventories
Trade receivables 13

Other current assets
 4,900,613,377  2,205,462,723 

Total  7,153,980,895  4,279,703,675 

For S R B C & CO LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Quick Heal Technologies Limited

per Tridevlal Khandelwal Kailash Katkar Sanjay Katkar

Rajesh  Ghonasgi  Vijay Shirode 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS 

Notes  March 31, 2016  
`

 March 31, 2015 
`

Income

Revenue from operations (net)  3,380,696,142  2,861,155,041 
Other income 18
Total revenue  3,478,738,911  2,943,371,179 
Expenses

Other expenses
Total expenses  2,593,167,121  2,145,115,034 

 885,571,790  798,256,145 
Tax expense

Total tax expense  301,574,787  260,212,354 
 583,997,003  538,043,791 

 583,997,003  538,043,791 
Earnings per equity share 

` `

Basic (in `
`

For S R B C & CO LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Quick Heal Technologies Limited

per Tridevlal Khandelwal Kailash Katkar Sanjay Katkar

Rajesh  Ghonasgi  Vijay Shirode 
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

 March 31, 2016  
`

 March 31, 2015 
`

A. Cash flows from operating activities

   Interest income 

 1,041,660,867  939,703,965 

Cash generated from operations  941,622,233  1,069,246,062 

Net cash flow from operating activities (A)  780,952,032  771,900,781 
Cash flows from investing activities

   Interest received

Net cash (used in) investing activities (B) (1,633,583,027)  (525,165,350)
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 March 31, 2016  
`

 March 31, 2015 
`

 1,894,819,321  (174,963,139)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  1,167,236,002  125,047,676 
Components of cash and cash equivalents:

Total cash and cash equivalents (Refer note 15)  1,167,236,002  125,047,676 

For S R B C & CO LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Quick Heal Technologies Limited

per Tridevlal Khandelwal Kailash Katkar Sanjay Katkar

Rajesh  Ghonasgi  Vijay Shirode 
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1. Corporate information

`
`

`

been adjusted against securities premium account in 

2. Basis of preparation 

accepted accounting principles in India (Indian 

the accounting principles generally accepted in 

statements have been prepared on an accrual basis 

 The accounting policies adopted in the preparation 

 (a) Principles of consolidation

NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED 

the accounting principles generally accepted 

  Subsidiaries
  

its subsidiary companies have been combined 
on line by line basis by adding together the book 

group balances and intra group transactions 

group transactions and intra group balances 

its investment in the subsidiaries are the 
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circumstances and necessary adjustments 

are presented in the same manner as in the 

against the income to arrive at the net income 

to the extent that the minority has binding 

adjusted

List of subsidiaries which are included in the consolidation and the Company’s effective holdings therein are as under:

Name of the subsidiary Country of  
incorporation

Financial year 
ends on

Company’s ultimate holding as on

March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

March 31

March 31

March 31

March 31

Disclosure of additional information pertaining to Holding Company and subsidiaries after elimination:

Share in net assets:

Name of the company As at March 31, 2016 As at March 31, 2015

As a % of 
consolidated 

net assets

Net assets
`

As a % of 
consolidated 

net assets

Net assets
`

Total 100.00% 6,069,253,234 100.00% 3,314,401,408
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Name of the company For the year ended 
March 31, 2016

For the year ended 
March 31, 2015

As a % of 
consolidated `

As a % of 
consolidated `

Holding Company:

Foreign Subsidiaries:

Total 100.00% 583,997,003 100.00% 538,043,791

 (b) Use of estimates

assumptions and estimates could result in the 

 

accumulated depreciation and accumulated 

and rebates are deducted in arriving at the 

existing asset beyond its previously assessed 

day repair and maintenance expenditure and 

 
  In case of Group:

Type of 
assets

Schedule  
II life  

(years)

Useful lives 
estimated 

by the 
management 

(years)

Rates  
(WDV)

Buildings
3 3

installations

Server
8 8

 In case of Quick Heal Technologies (MENA) FZE:



98ANNUAL REPORT 2015-2016

ABO
U

T Q
U

ICK H
EAL

FIN
AN

CIALS
CO

RPO
RATE G

O
VERN

AN
CE 

N
O

TICE & D
IRECTO

RS’ REPO
RT

M
D

&A

Type of assets Useful 
lives(years)

Rates

 (e) Intangible assets
  

assets are carried at cost less accumulated 

on a straight line basis over the period 

assets and intangible assets not yet available 

an indication that the intangible asset may be 

  Research and development costs

 

 

 

 

 
complete the development and to use or 

 The ability to measure reliably the 
expenditure attributable to the intangible 

 A summary of the amortization policy applied to the 
Group’s intangible assets is as below:

Type of asset Life (years)
Software 3

 (f) Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
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change in the assumptions used to determine 

 (g) Leases
  Where the Company within the Group is a 

lessee
  

the lease liability so as to achieve a constant 

  

 (h) Investments

  

purchase price and directly attributable 

proceeds is charged or credited to the 

 (i) Inventories
  

incorporated are expected to be sold at or 

  

 (j) Revenue recognition

 (i) Sale of security software products and devices
  

 (ii) Sale of mobile security product with insurance
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 (iii) Income from services
  

 (iv) Interest
  

proportion basis taking into account the 

 (v) Dividends
  

 (k) Foreign currency translation
  Foreign currency transactions and balances

 (i) Initial recognition

 (ii) Conversion
  

translated using the exchange rate prevailing 

are translated using the exchange rates at the 

 (iii) Exchange differences
  

 

 (iv) Foreign operations

reporting currency at exchange rate prevailing 

and loss are translated at exchange rates 

  

 
  In case of Holding Company:
  

balance sheet date exceeds the contribution 

  

such absences as the additional amount that 

entitlement that has accumulated at the 
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based on the actuarial valuation using the 

a current liability in the Balance Sheet to the 
extent it does not have an unconditional right 

unconditional legal and contractual right to 

  In case of Subsidiaries:
  

balance sheet date exceeds the contribution 

  

 (m)  Income taxes

the amount expected to be paid to the tax 

prevailing in the respective tax jurisdictions 

are those that are enacted at the reporting 

and accounting income originating during the 

is virtual certainty supported by convincing 

to the extent that it has become reasonably 

tax asset to the extent that it is no longer 

extent that there is convincing evidence that 
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 (n) Employee stock compensation cost
  

employees render services as consideration 

 

settled transactions is measured using 

transactions at each reporting date until the 

 (o) Segment reporting
  
  

 (p) Earnings per share (EPS)
  Basic earnings per share are calculated by 

  

 (q) Provisions
  

value and are determined based on the best 

  

expense relating to any provision is presented 

 (r) Contingent liabilities
  

 (s) Cash and cash equivalents
  

 (t) Corporate social responsibility expenditure
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3. Share capital     

As at  
March 31, 2016 

`

As at 
March 31, 2015 

`

Authorized shares
`

 750,000,000  750,000,000 

70,030,028 (March 31, 2015: 61,069,688) equity shares of ` 10 each 

Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital  700,300,280  610,696,880 

(a) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

As at 
March 31, 2016

As at 
March 31, 2015

No.  ` No.  ` 

At the beginning of the year
Issued during the year

Outstanding at the end of the year  70,030,028  700,300,280  61,069,688  610,696,880 

` ` `

 
    
(b) Terms / rights attached to equity shares

`

shareholders is  ` `

 

(c) Shares held by holding/ ultimate holding company and /or their subsidiaries/ associates 
  

preceding the reporting date    

As at  
March 31, 2016 

No.

As at 
March 31, 2015 

No.
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(e)  Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

As at 
March 31, 2016 

`

As at 
March 31, 2015 

`

Nos. % holding Nos. % holding
`

 

    
(f) Shares reserved for issue under option
 

4. Reserves and surplus  

As at 
March 31, 2016 

`

As at 
March 31, 2015 

`
Securities premium account

Closing balance  2,291,136,424  -   
Employees stock options outstanding account (Refer note 25)

Closing balance  2,061,640  1,370,453 
Amalgamation reserve

Closing balance  26,449,745  26,449,745 
General reserve

Closing balance  450,255,517  450,255,517 
Foreign currency translation reserve

Movement during the year
Closing balance  1,472,187  1,332,140 

` `

` `

Total appropriations
 2,597,577,441  2,224,296,673 

Total reserves and surplus  5,368,952,954  2,703,704,528 
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5. Current liabilities    

 As at  
March 31, 2016 

`

 As at  
March 31, 2015 

`

 Trade payable 

 531,802,518  373,647,383 
 Other current liabilities 

 Tax deducted at source payable 
 Sales tax payable 

 143,287,557  74,962,824 
 675,090,075  448,610,207 

   
6. Short-term provisions    

 As at  
March 31, 2016 

`

 As at 
 March 31, 2015   

`

 33,126,540  31,497,069 
 Other provisions 

 Interim dividend 

 376,511,046  485,194,991 
 409,637,586  516,692,060 
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7.2 Intangible assets

 Software Total 
`

Cost

At March 31, 2015  282,931,540  282,931,540 

At March 31, 2016  314,181,891  314,181,891 
Amortization

At March 31, 2015  174,388,393  174,388,393 

At March 31, 2016  220,438,645  220,438,645 
Net block
At March 31, 2015  108,543,147  108,543,147 
At March 31, 2016  93,743,246  93,743,246 

8. Non-current investments     

As at 
March 31, 2016 

`

As at 
March 31, 2015 

`

Trade investments (valued at cost unless stated otherwise) 
Investment in unquoted instruments 

 
`

`

 34,149,992  4,149,992 
        
9. Deferred tax assets (net)

As at 
March 31, 2016 

`

As at 
March 31, 2015 

`

Deferred tax liability

Gross deferred tax liability  38,675,231  38,355,582 
Deferred tax asset

Gross deferred tax asset  110,317,475  86,860,405 
Net deferred tax asset  71,642,244  48,504,823 

        



108ANNUAL REPORT 2015-2016

ABO
U

T Q
U

ICK H
EAL

FIN
AN

CIALS
CO

RPO
RATE G

O
VERN

AN
CE 

N
O

TICE & D
IRECTO

RS’ REPO
RT

M
D

&A

10. Loans and advances     

 Non-current  Current 
 As at  

March 31, 2016 
`

 As at  
March 31, 2015 

`

As at 
March 31, 2016 

`

 As at  
March 31, 2015 

`

 Capital advances 

 6,966,765  3,432,763  -   -
 Security deposits 

 -    -    35,085,511  9,729,246 
 Advances recoverable in cash or kind  

 333,179  215,540  36,723,983  2,209,699 
 Other loans and advances 
 Unsecured, considered good  

 

other government authorities 

 Unsecured, considered doubtful  

 170,412,155  168,659,351  29,132,179  49,840,485 

 170,412,155  168,659,351  22,748,367  43,456,673 
 177,712,099  172,307,654  94,557,861  55,395,618 

    
    

As at
March 31, 2016 

`

 As at  
March 31, 2015 

`

Advance to employees includes  

    
11. Other non-current assets     

As at 
March 31, 2016 

`

As at 
March 31, 2015 

`

 Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise 

 1,999,913  1,236,318 
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 12. Current investments (Valued at lower of cost and fair value, unless stated otherwise)

As at 
March 31, 2016 

`

As at 
March 31, 2015 

`

Non-Trade

[Market value ` `

 Aggregate amount of quoted investments  1,083,966,694  1,296,076,569 

12) Details of investment in mutual funds

 As at  
March 31, 2016 

`

 As at  
March 31, 2015 

`

`

`

`

`

`

`

`

`

`

`

`

`

`

`

`

`

`

`

`

`
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 As at  
March 31, 2016 

`

 As at  
March 31, 2015 

`

1,940,800 (March 31, 2015: Nil) units of  ` 10 each fully paid up of Kotak 
Treasury Advantage Fund  19,200,000  -   
36,576 (March 31, 2015: Nil) units of ` 1,000 each fully paid up of Kotak Floater 
Short Term- Daily Dividend Reinvestment  37,000,648  -   
56,835 (March 31, 2015:94,582) units of ` 1,000 each fully paid up of L & T 
Liquid Fund Daily Dividend Reinvestment Plan  57,496,596  95,682,985 
9,298,436 (March 31, 2015: Nil) units of ` 10 each fully paid up of Tata Short 
Term Bond Fund Plan - Fortnightly Div  128,797,678  -   
36,604 (March 31, 2015: 39,994) units of ` 1,000 each fully paid up of UTI 
Treasury Advantage Fund-inst- Daily Dividend Reinvestment  36,689,228  40,086,832 
Nil (March 31, 2015: 1,636) units of  ` 1,000 each fully paid up of Axis Liquid 
Fund - Daily Dividend Reinvestment  -    1,636,185 
36,425 (March 31, 2015: 63,196) units of  ` 1,000 each fully paid up of  Baroda 
Pioneer Liquid Fund - Plan A Daily Dividend Reinvestment  36,466,218  63,266,267 
"320,467 (March 31, 2015: 1,00,291) units of  ` 100 each fully paid up of  
Birla Sun Life Cash Plus Institutional Premium-Daily Dividend Regular Plan 
Reinvestment  32,109,201  10,048,638 
13,364,450 (March 31, 2015: 9,275,641) units of ` 10 each fully paid up of Axis 
Short Term Fund - Monthly Dividend Reinvestment  136,336,104  94,490,931 
1,000,000 (March 31, 2015: 1,000,000) units of ` 10 each fully paid up of Birla 
Sun Life Fixed Term Plan- Series KC(1099 days) - Growth Regular  10,000,000  10,000,000 
32,783 (March 31, 2015: 4,664,385) units of ` 1,000 each fully paid up of HDFC 
Liquid Fund - Daily dividend Reinvestment  33,432,755  47,568,331 
1,000,000 (March 31, 2015: 1,000,000) units of ` 10 each fully paid up of HDFC 
FMP 370D Feb 2014 - (1)- Series 29-Regular Growth  10,000,000  10,000,000 
1,000,000 (March 31, 2015: 1,000,000) units of ` 10 each fully paid up of ICICI 
Prudential FMP Series 72-366 D Plan K Regular Plan - Growth  10,000,000  10,000,000 
1,000,000 (March 31, 2015: 1,000,000) units of ` 10 each fully paid up of ICICI 
FMP Series 72-366 D Plan M Regular P - Growth  10,000,000  10,000,000 
Nil (March 31, 2015:  4,014,130) units of  `10 each fully paid up of IDFC Ultra 
Short Term Fund - Daily dividend Reinvestment  -    40,218,367 
7,417,881 (March 31, 2015: 4,961,301) units of ` 10 each fully paid up of Kotak 
Bond Scheme (Short Term Plan) - Monthly Dividend Reinvestment  75,332,801  50,171,982 
1,000,411 (March 31, 2015: Nil) units of ` 10 each fully paid up of Reliance Fixed 
Horizon Fund - XXX - SERIES 9 - DIVIDEND PLAN  10,004,106  -   
5,908,864 (March 31, 2015: Nil) units of  ` 10 each fully paid up of Reliance 
Short Term Fund - Monthly Dividend Plan  64,539,362  -   
Nil (March 31, 2015: 28,274) units of  ` 1,000 each fully paid up of Reliance 
Liquidity Fund  - Daily Dividend Reinvestment  -    28,288,135 
1,000,000 (March 31, 2015: 1,000,000) units of ` 10 each fully paid up of 
'Reliance FHF XXVII Ser 7 Growth  10,000,000  10,000,000 
500,000 (March 31, 2015: 500,000) units of ` 10 each fully paid up of Reliance 
Fixed Horizon Fund - XXIV - Series 11 - Growth Plan  5,000,000  5,000,000 
500,000 (March 31, 2015: 500,000) units of ` 10 each fully paid up of Reliance 
Fixed Horizon Fund - XXIV - Series 15 - Growth  5,000,000  5,000,000 
1,000,000 (March 31, 2015: 1,000,000) units of ` 10 each fully paid up of 
Reliance Fixed Horizon Fund - XXV - Series 18 - Growth  10,000,000  10,000,000 
29,052 (March 31, 2015: 22,147) units of ` 1,000 each fully paid up of SBI 
Premier Liquid Fund-Regular Plan - Daily Dividend Reinvestment  29,146,522  22,218,823 
1,000,000 (March 31, 2015: 1,000,000) units of ` 10 each fully paid up of SBI 
Debt Fund Series - 366 days - 52 -Regular Plan Growth  10,000,000  10,000,000 

 1,083,966,694  1,296,076,569 
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13. Trade receivables    

As at 
March 31, 2016 

`

As at 
March 31, 2015 

`

Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they are due for 
payment

 69,202,355  60,625,935 
Others

 -    -   
 876,602,743  586,927,445 

 -    -   
 876,602,743  586,927,445 
 945,805,098  647,553,380 

          
14. Inventories (valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)    

As at  
March 31, 2016 

`

As at 
March 31, 2015 

`

`
`

`
`

 66,688,626  78,423,126 
    
15. Cash and bank balances    

Non-current Current
 As at 

March 31, 2016  
`

 As at  
March 31, 2015 

`

As at 
March 31, 2016 

`

 As at  
March 31, 2015 

`

Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:

than three months 

 -    -    1,167,236,002  125,047,676 
Other bank balances

 1,999,913  1,236,318  1,523,317,675  1,351,913 

 -    -    2,690,553,677  126,399,589 
    

` `
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16. Other current assets    

As at 
March 31, 2016 

`

 As at  
March 31, 2015 

`

Interest accrued on

Other assets

 19,041,421  1,614,441 

17. Revenue from operations (net)  

 For the  
year ended  

March 31, 2016 
`

 For the  
year ended  

March 31, 2015 
`

Revenue from operations 

Revenue from operations (gross)  3,380,696,142  2,861,155,041 

Revenue from operations (net)  3,380,696,142  2,861,155,041 
     
18. Other income  

 For the  
year ended  

March 31, 2016 
`

 For the  
year ended  

March 31, 2015 
`

Interest income on
    Bank deposits
    Others

Miscellaneous income
 98,042,769  82,216,138 
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19. Details related to cost of security software devices and software products   

 For the  
year ended  

March 31, 2016 
`

For the  
year ended 

March 31, 2015 
`

19(a) Cost of raw materials consumed 

 39,599,612  21,813,935 
19(b) Purchase of security software products

 123,366,764  149,036,439 
19(c)(Increase )/decrease in security software products

 5,663,049  (13,065,636)
  168,629,425  157,784,738 

  

For the  
year ended  

March 31, 2016 
`

 For the  
year ended  

March 31, 2015 
`

 864,150,436  641,083,689 

21. Depreciation and amortisation expense 

 For the  
year ended  

March 31, 2016 
`

 For the  
year ended  

 March 31, 2015  
`

 237,111,239  202,003,527 
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22. Other expenses  

 For the  
year ended  

March 31, 2016 
`

 For the  
year ended  

March 31, 2015 
`

Web publishing expenses
Technology subscription charges

Insurance

      Buildings
      Others

Sales incentive

Business promotion expenses

Traveling and conveyance

Miscellaneous expenses
 1,323,276,021  1,144,243,080 

Payment to auditor *  

 For the  
year ended  

March 31, 2016 
`

 For the  
year ended  

March 31, 2015 
`

 5,716,894  3,664,465 
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Donation to political parties  

Name of the party to which such amount has been contributed  For the  
year ended  

March 31, 2016 
`

 For the  
year ended  

March 31, 2015 
`

Shivsena
Total amount contributed  -    2,500,000 

23. Earnings per share      

For the  
year ended 

March 31, 2016 
`

For the  
year ended 

March 31, 2015 
`

Numerator for basic and diluted EPS:
`

Denominator for basic EPS:

Denominator for diluted EPS:

Effect of dilution:

Basic and diluted earning per share of face value of ` 10 each (in `) (A/B)
Diluted Earnings per share of face value of ` 10 each (in `) (A/E)

24. Gratuity 
 Holding Company

 

For the  
year ended 

March 31, 2016 
`

For the  
year ended 

March 31, 2015 
`

11,814,289 16,980,570
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 Consolidated balance sheet

As at 
March 31, 2016 

`

As at  
March 31, 2015 

`

Plan asset/(liability) (23,340,298) (16,688,445)

As at 
March 31, 2016 

`

As at  
March 31, 2015 

`

Interest cost

47,301,508 35,527,498

 Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

As at 
March 31, 2016 

`

As at  
March 31, 2015 

`

Closing fair value of plan assets 23,961,210 18,839,053

` `

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows: 

Nature of plan assets As at 
March 31, 2016

As at  
March 31, 2015

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s plan are shown below:  

For the 
year ended

March 31, 2016
%

For the  
year ended

March 31, 2015
%
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Amounts for the current and previous four years are as follows:

As at
March 31, 2016 

`

As at
March 31, 2015 

`

As at
March 31, 2014 

`

As at
March 31, 2013 

`

As at
March 31, 2012 

`

obligation

gain 

gain

25. Employee stock option plan
 
 Holding Company

i. Details of Employee stock option plan
 
 Employee Stock Option Plan, 2010 (ESOP 2010)

ii. The Company has provided the following share-based payment schemes to its employees:

Particulars Details

` `

contract
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iii. The vesting pattern of the scheme is as follows:
Time period from the date of grant Cumulative percentage of share vesting

 The details of activities under the scheme have been summarized below:  
 

For the year ended  
March 31, 2016

For the year ended  
March 31, 2015

Number of 
options

Weighted 
average 

exercise price 
(`) 

Number of 
options

Weighted 
average 

exercise price 
(`)

iv. The details of exercise price for stock options outstanding at the end of the year are: 
As at 

March 31, 2016
As at  

March 31, 2015
`

Weighted average exercise price (`

 Employee Stock Option Plan, 2014 (ESOP 2014)
 

v. The Company has provided the following share-based payment schemes to its employees:
Particulars Details

` `
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vi. The vesting pattern of the scheme is as follows:

Time period from the date of grant Cumulative percentage of share vesting

The details of activities under the scheme have been summarized below:  
For the year ended  

March 31, 2016
For the year ended  

March 31, 2015
Number of 

options
Weighted 

average 
exercise price 

(`) 

Number of 
options

Weighted 
average 

exercise price 
(`)

vii. The details of exercise price for stock options outstanding at the end of the year are: 
As at 

March 31, 2016
As at  

March 31, 2015
`

Weighted average exercise price (`

viii. Stock options granted:
`

For the 
year ended         

March 31, 2016

For the 
year ended         

March 31, 2015
Weighted average share price (`

`

Years Years

position
 

` `
` `
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x. Proforma disclosures by applying fair value method
 

For the 
year ended         

March 31, 2016 
`

For the 
year ended         

March 31, 2015 
`

Earnings per share
Basic:

Diluted:

26. Leases
 Operating lease: Group as lessee 

For the 
year ended         

March 31, 2016 
`

For the 
year ended         

March 31, 2015 
`

 Finance lease: Group as lessee
 

27. Segment information
 Primary segment

 Geographical segment
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 Revenue from operations

For the 
year ended         

March 31, 2016 
`

For the 
year ended         

March 31, 2015 
`

Within India 3,280,025,469 2,784,178,575
Outside India 100,670,673 76,976,466
Total 3,380,696,142 2,861,155,041

 
 Segment Assets

As at
March 31, 2016 

`

As at 
March 31, 2015 

`

Within India 7,023,170,070 4,186,398,189
Outside India 130,810,824 93,305,487
Total 7,153,980,894 4,279,703,676

geographical segment as all these assets are situated in India.

28. Corporate Social Responsibility expenditure

For the 
year ended         

March 31, 2016 
`

For the 
year ended         

March 31, 2015
`

(a)    Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 19,996,326 13,818,917

For the year ended
March 31, 2016 

`

For the year ended
March 31, 2015 

`

(b)    Amount spent during the year Paid Yet to  
be paid

Total Paid Yet to  
be paid

Total

1 For the purpose of Education 
and Social Activity

10,640,000 - 10,640,000 2,425,501 - 2,425,501
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29. Related party disclosures
 i. Names of related parties and related party relationship 

Related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year
 
 
 

Marketing
 
 

personnel
 

 

major shareholders
 

 
 

 ii. Transactions with related parties:

Name of the related party For the year ended
Nature of transaction March 31, 2016 

`
March 31, 2015 

`

Remuneration

54,172,800 40,321,533
Rent

3,096,924 2,903,420
Corporate social responsibility 
contribution

10,640,000 2,353,501
ESOP exercise

8,537,500 -
IPO expenses incurred on behalf 
of directors and recoverable/
recovered from them:

74,477,150 -
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Name of the related party For the year ended
Nature of transaction March 31, 2016 

`
March 31, 2015 

`

Kailash Katkar 51,278,460 -
Sanjay Katkar 51,278,460 -
Anupama Katkar 12,509,940 -
Chhaya Katkar 12,509,940 -
Rajesh Ghonasgi 66,411 -

127,643,211 -
Interim dividend declared and paid Kailash Katkar 147,519,134 20,116,246

Sanjay Katkar 147,519,134 20,116,246
Anupama Katkar 33,026,242 4,503,578
Chhaya Katkar 33,026,242 4,503,578

361,090,752 49,239,648

 iii. Balances outstanding:

Name of the related party As at
March 31, 2016 

`
March 31, 2015 

`
Remuneration payable* Kailash Katkar 562,800 1,447,800

Sanjay Katkar 565,000 1,450,000
Abhijit Jorvekar 346,000 313,829
Anupama Katkar 166,100 3,85,800
Rajesh Ghonasgi 426,000 453,000
Vijay Shirode 81,000 72,800

2,146,900 4,123,229
Rent payable Anupama Katkar 6,291 17,968

Chhaya Katkar 6,291 17,968
Kailash Sahebrao Katkar HUF 20,963 59,895
Sanjay Sahebrao Katkar HUF 20,963 59,895

                  54,508 155,726
Advance receivable from key 
management personnel

Kailash Katkar 372,808 -

Sanjay Katkar 231,786 -
Abhijit Jorvekar 321,140 187,518
Rajesh Ghonasgi 159,003 -

1,084,737 187,518
IPO expenses receivable Kailash Katkar 1,306,609 -

Sanjay Katkar 1,306,609 -
2,613,218 -

payable
Kailash Katkar 51,278,460 -

Sanjay Katkar 51,278,460 -
Anupama Katkar 12,509,940 -
Chhaya Katkar 12,509,940 -
Rajesh Ghonasgi 66,411 -

127,643,211 -
Interim dividend Payable Kailash Katkar - 147,519,134

Sanjay Katkar - 147,519,134
Anupama Katkar - 33,026,242
Chhaya Katkar - 33,026,242

- 361,090,752

determined on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole. Further, the remuneration and perquisites on account of ESOP to key 
managerial personnel does not include employee stock compensation expense.
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30. Capital and other commitments

As at 
March 31, 2016 

`

As at  
March 31, 2015 

`

Capital Commitment:

not provided
Other Commitment:

Note A
`

`
`

Note B

31. Contingent liabilities

(A) Contingent liabilities

As at 
March 31, 2016 

`

As at  
March 31, 2015 

`

Total 849,718,255 630,964,579

Notes: 

` `

`
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` ` `

` `

(B)  Other litigation
 

and others claiming `
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32. Particulars of unhedged foreign currency exposures as at the balance sheet date

As at March 31, 2016 As at March 31, 2015
Foreign 

currency
In foreign 
currency

In Indian 
Rupees

Foreign 
currency

In foreign 
currency

In Indian 
Rupees

Bank balances

Trade receivable

Trade payables

managerial personnel

33. 
Act, 2006



QUICK HEAL TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED 127

34. Disclosure required under Sec 186(4) of the Companies Act 2013

Name of the loanee Rate of interest Due date Secured/ 
unsecured

As at
March 31, 2016

As at
March 31, 2015

Unsecured

35. Share issue expenses recoverable
 

`
`

 Share issue expenses
 

36. Utilization of money raised through public issue
 `

Fund allocated to 
the activities as per 

prospectus 
`

Actual 
utilization up to 
March 31, 2016 

`

Unutilized 
money as on 

March 31,2016 
`

Total 2,342,510,000 25,350,000 2,317,160,000
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 Utilisation of IPO proceeds:

Amount 
`

Sub-total (A)

Sub-total (B) 172,436,872
Net proceeds (A-B) 2,327,562,809

 Details of short-term investments made from unutilized portion of public issue raised during the year ended 
March 31, 2016:

Amount 
`

Balance in current accounts
Total 2,317,160,000

For S R B C & CO LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Quick Heal Technologies Limited

per Tridevlal Khandelwal Kailash Katkar Sanjay Katkar

Rajesh  Ghonasgi  Vijay Shirode 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Members of 
Quick Heal Technologies Limited
 
Report on the Financial Statements

statements of Quick Heal Technologies Limited (“the 
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 

Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary 

information. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial 
Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 
matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these 

cash flows of the Company in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, including the 

Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of 
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds 
and other irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 

ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud  
or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility

have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the 
accounting and auditing standards and matters which 
are required to be included in the audit report under the 
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 

Those Standards require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 

statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 

on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment 

statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal 

in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by 
the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall 

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 

Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and 

Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view 
in conformity with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India of the state of affairs of the Company as 

ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matter

statements wherein it is stated that the Company has 

provision of Finance Act, 1994 for ̀
penalty of ` 560,715,595 stated in one of demands)  for 
the period from March 01, 2011 to March 31, 2015 and as 
more fully discussed therein and based on matter stated 
therein including legal opinion obtained by the Company, 
no provision has been considered by the management in 

subsequent period till March 31, 2016.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s report) Order, 

2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government 
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of 

2. As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report 
that: 

 (a) We have sought and obtained all the 

of our knowledge and belief were necessary 
for the purpose of our audit;

 (b) In our opinion proper books of account as 
required by law have been kept by the Company 

those books;

this Report are in agreement with the books of 
account;

 (d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone 

Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014; 

 (e) On the basis of written representations 
received from the directors as on March 31, 
2016, and taken on record by the Board of 

as on March 31, 2016, from being appointed as 
a director in terms of section 164 (2) of the Act;

 (f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal 

the Company and the operating effectiveness 

of such controls, refer to our separate Report 

 (g) With respect to the other matters to be 
included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance 
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the 
best of our information and according to the 

 i. The Company has disclosed the impact of 

 ii. The Company did not have any long-term 
contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable 
losses;

 iii. There were no amounts which were required 
to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company.

For S R B C & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants

per Tridevlal Khandelwal 
Partner

Place: Pune
Date: May 11, 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading 
“Reporting on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” 
of our report of even date.

Re: Quick Heal Technologies Limited (‘the Company’)

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records 
showing full particulars, including quantitative 

by the management during the year and no 

given by the management, the title deeds of 

are held in the name of the Company.

of inventory at reasonable intervals during the year 
and no material discrepancies were noticed on such 

to us, the Company has not granted any loans, 

register maintained under section 189 of the Act. 
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii)(a), (b) and 
(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company 
and hence not commented upon.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information 

which the Director is interested to which provisions 
of section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 apply 
and hence not commented upon. In our opinion and 

to us, provisions of section 186 of the Act in respect 
of loans and advances given, investments made 
have been complied with by the company. Further, 
the Company has not given guarantee or provided 
security to which the provisions of section 186 of the 
Act apply.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from 
the public.

maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of 
the Act, for the products and services of the Company.

(vii)  (a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident 
fund, employees’ state insurance, income-

other material statutory dues have generally 
been regularly deposited with the appropriate 
authorities though there has been a slight 

given to us, no undisputed amounts payable 
in respect of provident fund, employees’ state 

were outstanding, at the year end, for a period 

became payable.

 (c) According to the records of the Company, the 

dispute, are as follows:

Name of 
the statute

Nature of 
the dues

Amount
(Rs)

Period to 
which the
amount 
relates

Forum  
where the  
dispute is  
pending

The In-

Act,  1961 account of 
valuation 
of closing 
stock

1,751,300 

1,753,000 
paid 
under 
protest)

FY 2009-
10

Commis-
sioner of 

(Appeals)

The 
Income 

1961

account 
of disal-
lowance of 

on 14A

936,021* FY 2011-
12

Commis-
sioner of 

(Appeals)

The 
Finance 
Act, 1994

on supply 
of licences 
to end cus-
tomers*

560,705,595 March 1, 
2011 to 
March 
31, 2014

Additional 
Director 
General 
(Adjudica-

Delhi
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Name of 
the statute

Nature of 
the dues

Amount
(Rs)

Period to 
which the
amount 
relates

Forum  
where the  
dispute is  
pending

The 
Finance 
Act, 1994

on supply 
of licences 
to end cus-
tomers*

285,354,034 FY 2014-
15

Principal 
Commis-
sioner of 

Pune

The Kerala 
Value Add-

, 2003

Value 

on stock 
transfer

107,636  

46,690 
paid 
under 
protest)

FY 2012-
13

Deputy 
Commis-
sioner of 
Appeals 
(Commer-

Kochi

(viii)  In our opinion and according to the information and 

did not have any outstanding dues in respect of 

holders during the year. 

raised by the Company by way of initial public offer 
has been applied for the purpose for which they were 
obtained, though idle funds which were not required 
for immediate utilization have been gainfully invested 
in liquid investments payable on demand.  The 

year was ` 2,317,160,000, of which ` 2,317,160,000 
was outstanding at the end of the year. According 

management, the Company has not raised any 
money by way of term loans.

purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the 

report that no fraud by the Company or no fraud  on 

Company has been noticed or reported during the 
year.

by the management, the managerial remuneration 
has been provided in accordance with the requisite 
approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 
read with Schedule V to the Act.

are not applicable to the Company and hence not 
commented upon.

by the management, transactions with the related 
parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 
of the Act where applicable and the details have been 

required by the applicable accounting standards.

sheet, the Company has not made any preferential 
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or 
partly convertible debentures during the year under 
review and hence reporting requirements under 

hence not commented upon.  

by the management, the Company has not entered 
into any non-cash transactions with directors or 
persons connected with him as referred to in section 
192 of the Act.

to us, the provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve 
Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the 
Company.

For S R B C & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants

per Tridevlal Khandelwal 
Partner

Place: Pune
Date: May 11, 2016
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Annexure 2 referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under the heading 
“Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of 
our report on even date 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) 
of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”)

Quick Heal Technologies Limited 
(“the Company”) as of March 31, 2016 in conjunction with 

Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial 
Controls
The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing 

by the Company considering the essential components of 

Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and 

were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 

the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, 
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 

as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 

Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance 

applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, 
both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 

reporting was established and maintained and if such 
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 

and operating effectiveness of internal control based on 
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the 

whether due to fraud or error.
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting 

reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 

purposes in accordance with generally accepted 

procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records 
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; 
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are 

statements in accordance with generally accepted 

of the Company are being made only in accordance 
with authorisations of management and directors of the 
Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, 
use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could 



134ANNUAL REPORT 2015-2016

ABO
U

T Q
U

ICK H
EAL

FIN
AN

CIALS
CO

RPO
RATE G

O
VERN

AN
CE 

N
O

TICE & D
IRECTO

RS’ REPO
RT

M
D

&A

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting

of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur 
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation 

to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 

inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the 
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, 

reporting criteria established by the Company considering 
the essential components of internal control stated in the 

Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India.

For S R B C & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants

per Tridevlal Khandelwal
Partner

Place: Pune
Date: May 11, 2016
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Notes  March 31, 2016 
`

 March 31, 2015
`

Equity and liabilities    
Shareholders’ funds
Share capital 3  700,300,280  610,696,880 
Reserves and surplus 4  5,475,330,126  2,765,605,099 

 6,175,630,406  3,376,301,979 
Current liabilities
Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of  micro enterprises and small enterprises 5  -  - 
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 
small enterprises

5  528,053,601  369,211,632 

Other current liabilities 5  142,279,063  74,589,639 
Short-term provisions 6  409,637,586  516,692,060 

 1,079,970,250  960,493,331 
Total  7,255,600,656  4,336,795,310 
Assets
Non-current assets

    Tangible assets 7.1  1,321,545,441  1,001,083,040 
    Intangible assets 7.2  93,735,956  108,543,147 
    Capital work-in-progress  550,206,156  737,413,770 

8  164,195,821  93,093,071 
9  71,642,243  48,504,823 

10  181,150,221  175,866,104 
Other non-current assets 11  1,999,913  1,236,318 

 2,384,475,751  2,165,740,273 
Current assets
Current investments 12  1,083,966,694  1,296,076,569 
Inventories 14  53,680,889  69,618,324 
Trade receivables 13  991,100,240  676,571,726 
Cash and bank balances 15  2,630,567,349  73,431,414 

10  92,768,312  53,742,563 
Other current assets 16  19,041,421  1,614,441 

 4,871,124,905  2,171,055,037 
Total  7,255,600,656  4,336,795,310 

2.1

As per our report of even date

For S R B C & CO LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Quick Heal Technologies Limited

per Tridevlal Khandelwal Kailash Katkar Sanjay Katkar
Partner Managing Director Managing Director

Place: Pune Rajesh  Ghonasgi  Vijay Shirode 
Date: May 11, 2016  Company Secretary 

BALANCE SHEET 
as at March 31, 2016
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS 
for the year ended March 31, 2016

Notes  March 31, 2016 
`

 March 31, 2015
`

Income

Revenue from operations (gross) 17  3,344,678,430  2,840,674,279 

 -    -   

Revenue from operations (net)   3,344,678,430  2,840,674,279 

Other income 18  93,471,689  81,830,057 

Total revenue  3,438,150,119  2,922,504,336 

Expenses    

Cost of raw materials consumed 19(a)  12,795,986  20,869,642 

Purchase of security software products 19(b)  120,547,936  137,146,517 

19(c)  10,254,273  (11,443,649)

20  832,802,027  625,543,423 

21  236,778,949  201,829,770 

22  1,294,880,717  1,125,487,047 

Total expenses  2,508,059,888  2,099,432,750 

 930,090,231  823,071,586 

Tax expenses

 324,614,000  269,305,600 

 (23,137,420)  (9,231,885)

Total tax expense  301,476,580  260,073,715 

 628,613,651  562,997,871 

Earnings per equity share  
[nominal value of share ` 10 (March 31, 2015:  ` 10)]

23   

Basic (in `)  10.08  9.22 

Diluted (in `)  10.08  9.09 

2.1    

As per our report of even date

For S R B C & CO LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Quick Heal Technologies Limited

per Tridevlal Khandelwal Kailash Katkar Sanjay Katkar
Partner Managing Director Managing Director

Place: Pune Rajesh  Ghonasgi  Vijay Shirode 
Date: May 11, 2016  Company Secretary 
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the year ended March 31, 2016

 March 31, 2016 
`

 March 31, 2015
`

A. Cash flows from operating activities
 930,090,231  823,071,586 

  236,778,949  201,829,770 

 Interest income  (15,618,958)  (3,794,049)

 Provision for doubtful debts and advances  3,357,032  11,725,450 

 Bad debts written off  2,108,067  3,003,689 

  19,035  (567,182)

  -  78,771 

  1,498,229  1,275,168 

 Dividend income  (47,828,273)  (63,615,353)

  (3,024,073)  751,205 

  (19,336,419)  (13,728,730)

 1,088,043,820  960,030,325 
Movements in working capital:    

  (316,969,540)  17,034,285 

  15,937,435  (15,459,006)

  (39,025,749)  6,978,101 

  159,738  (1,865,613)

  (3,357,733)  122,160 

 Increase in short-term provisions  1,547,941  12,407,664 

 Increase in trade payables  158,841,969  82,962,615 

 Increase in other current liabilities  68,884,486  16,104,714 

Cash generated from operations  974,062,367  1,078,315,245 
 (160,729,042)  (297,198,818)

Net cash flow from operating activities (A)  813,333,325  781,116,427 
Cash flows from investing activities

 Purchase of tangible and intangible assets (including capital 
 work-in-progress and capital advances)  (360,361,494)  (660,749,562)

 Proceeds from sale of tangible and intangible assets  386,850  1,047,104 

 Investments in wholly-owned subsidiaries  (41,102,750)  (48,472,131)

 Investments in non-current investments (other)  (30,000,000)  (4,149,992)

 Purchase of current investments  (2,066,701,811)  (2,771,762,681)

 Sale of current investments  2,298,148,105  2,803,177,325 

 Investment in bank deposits (having remaining maturity of 
 more than three months)  (1,522,729,357)  39,962,140 
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 March 31, 2016 
`

 March 31, 2015
`

 Interest received  1,549,711  3,688,555 

 Dividends received  47,828,273  63,615,353 

Net cash (used in) investing activities (B) (1,672,982,473)  (573,643,889)

 Dividend paid on equity shares  (403,059,941)  (149,547,536)

  (82,053,520)  (25,415,603)

 Proceeds from issuance of equity shares  
  2,327,562,809  - 

  
 (including securities premium)  52,369,973  - 

 1,894,819,321  (174,963,139)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C)  1,035,170,173  32,509,399 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  72,079,501  39,570,102 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  1,107,249,674  72,079,501 
Components of cash and cash equivalents:

 Cash on hand  1,955,076  1,139,388 

Balances with banks

 On Current account  341,808,819  70,572,263 

 Deposits with original maturity of less than three months  750,000,000  - 

 Cheques on hand  12,000,000  - 

 On EEFC account  1,485,779  367,850 

Total cash and cash equivalent (Refer note 15)  1,107,249,674  72,079,501 
   

As per our report of even date

For S R B C & CO LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Quick Heal Technologies Limited

per Tridevlal Khandelwal Kailash Katkar Sanjay Katkar
Partner Managing Director Managing Director

Place: Pune Rajesh  Ghonasgi  Vijay Shirode 
Date: May 11, 2016  Company Secretary 
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1. Corporate information

is a public company domiciled in India and 
incorporated on August 7, 1995 under the Companies 

engaged in the business of providing security 
software products. The Company caters to both 
domestic and international market. 

 Pursuant to Initial Public Offering (IPO), 14,057,719 
equity shares of ` 10 each were allotted at a price 
of ` 321 per equity share consisting of fresh issue 
of 7,788,161 equity shares and offer for sale of 
6,269,558 equity shares by the selling shareholders. 
The equity shares of the Company were listed on the 

` 172,436,872 
related to fresh issue of equity shares which has 
been adjusted against securities premium account in 
terms of Section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013.

2. Basis of preparation  

prepared in accordance with the generally accepted 
accounting principles in India (Indian GAAP). The 

comply in all material respects with the Accounting 

Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 
7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The 

accrual basis under the historical cost convention. 

 The accounting policies adopted in the preparation 

previous year.

 (a) Use of estimates 

in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the 
management to make judgments, estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported 

and liabilities and disclosure of contingent 
liabilities at the end of reporting period. 
Although these estimates are based on the 
management’s best knowledge of current 
events and actions, uncertainty about these 
assumptions and estimates could result in the 
outcomes requiring a material adjustment to 
the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in 
future periods.

 

accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any. The cost 
comprises purchase price, borrowing costs 
if capitalization criteria are met, the cost of 

attributable cost of bringing the asset to its 
working condition for the intended use. When 

to be replaced at intervals, the company 
recognizes such parts as individual assets 

inspection is performed, its cost is recognized 

a replacement if the recognition criteria are 

are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. 
Capital work-in-progress includes cost of 

asset beyond its previously assessed standard 

replacing parts, are charged to the statement 

  Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of 

between the net disposal proceeds and 
the carrying amount of the asset and are 

when the asset is derecognized.

 

written down value (WDV) basis using the rates 
arrived at based on the useful lives estimated 
by the management. The Company has used 
the following rates to provide depreciation on 

NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE 
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Type of assets Schedule  
II life  

(years)

Useful lives 
estimated 

by the 
management 

(years)

Rates  
(WDV)

Buildings 60 60 4.87%
Computers 3 3 63.16%
Electrical 
installations

10 10 25.89%

Furniture and 10 10 25.89%

equipment
5 5 45.07%

Server 6 6 39.30%
Vehicles 8 8 31.23%

over the period of lease, i.e. 30 years.

 (d) Intangible assets
  Intangible assets acquired separately are 

measured on initial recognition at cost. 
Following initial recognition, intangible 
assets are carried at cost less accumulated 
amortization and accumulated impairment 
losses, if any. 

  Intangible assets i.e. softwares are amortized 
on a straight line basis over the period 

estimated useful lives of three years. Intangible 
assets and intangible assets not yet available 
for use are tested for impairment annually, 
either individually or at the cash-generating unit 
level. All other intangible assets are assessed 
for impairment whenever there is an indication 
that the intangible asset may be impaired.

  The amortization period and the amortization 

estimates, the amortization period is changed 

method is changed to reflect the changed 
pattern. Such changes are accounted for in 

the Period, Prior Period Items and Changes in 
Accounting Policies.”

  Gains or losses arising from de-recognition 
of an intangible asset are measured as the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds 

and the carrying amount of the asset and are 

when the asset is derecognized.

  Research and development costs

individual project is recognized as an intangible 
asset when the Company can demonstrate all 
the following:

 The technical feasibility of completing the 
intangible asset so that it will be available for use 
or sale;

 Its intention to complete the asset;

 Its ability to use or sell the asset;

 How the asset will generate future economic 

 The availability of adequate resources to complete 
the development and to use or sell the asset; and

 
attributable to the intangible asset during 
development.

 Following the initial recognition of the development 

requiring the asset to be carried at cost less any 
accumulated amortization and accumulated 
impairment losses. Amortization of the asset begins 
when development is complete and the asset is 
available for use. It is amortized on a straight line 

the related project, i.e., the estimated useful life. 

and loss. During the period of development, the asset 
is tested for impairment annually.

 A summary of the amortization policy applied to the 
Company’s intangible assets is as below:-

Type of assets Life (years)
Software 3

 (e) Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
  The Company assesses at each reporting 

date whether there is an indication that an 
asset may be impaired. If any indication 

an asset is required, the Company estimates 
the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s 
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s 
or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) net selling 
price and its value in use. The recoverable 
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amount is determined for an individual asset, 
unless the asset does not generate cash 
inflows that are largely independent of those 
from other assets or groups of assets. Where 
the carrying amount of an asset or CGU 

considered impaired and is written down to 
its recoverable amount. In assessing value 
in use, the estimated future cash flows are 
discounted to their present value using a pre-

assessments of the time value of money and 

net selling price, recent market transactions 
are taken into account, if transactions can be 

used.

  The Company bases its impairment 
calculation on detailed budgets and forecast 
calculations which are prepared separately for 
each of the Company’s cash-generating units 
to which the individual assets are allocated. 
These budgets and forecast calculations are 

longer periods, a long term growth rate is 
calculated and applied to project future cash 

  An assessment is made at each reporting 
date as to whether there is any indication that 
previously recognized impairment losses may 

asset’s or cash-generating unit’s recoverable 
amount. A previously recognized impairment 
loss is reversed only if there has been a 
change in the assumptions used to determine 
the asset’s recoverable amount since the last 
impairment loss was recognized. The reversal 
is limited so that the carrying amount of the 

have been determined, net of depreciation, 
had no impairment loss been recognized 
for the asset in prior years. Such reversal 

loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued 
amount, in which case the reversal is treated 
as a revaluation increase.

 (f) Leases
  Where the Company is a lessee
  Finance leases, which effectively transfer to 

the Company substantially all the risks and 

item, are capitalized at the inception of the 
lease term at the lower of the fair value of the 
leased property and present value of minimum 

reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve 
a constant rate of interest on the remaining 
balance of the liability. Finance charges are 

legal charges and other initial direct costs of 
lease are capitalized.

  A leased asset is depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the useful life of the asset. 
However, if there is no reasonable certainty 
that the Company will obtain the ownership by 
the end of the lease term, the capitalized asset 
is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the 
shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset 
or the lease term.

operating leases. Operating lease payments 

the lease term.

 (g) Investments
  Investments,  which are readily realizable and 

intended to be held for not more than one year 
from the date on which such investments are 

term investments. 
  
  On initial recognition, all investments are 

measured at cost. The cost comprises 
purchase price and directly attributable 
acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees 
and duties. 

statements at lower of cost and fair value 
determined on an individual investment basis. 

However, provision for diminution in value 
is made to recognize a decline other than 
temporary in the value of the investments.

  On disposal of an investment, the difference 
between its carrying amount and net disposal 
proceeds is charged or credited to the 

 (h) Inventories
  Cost of inventories have been computed 

to include all cost of purchases, cost of 
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing 
the inventories to their present location and 
condition.

  Raw materials are valued at lower of cost and 
net realizable value. However, materials and 
other items held for use in the production of 
inventories is not written down below cost 

above cost. Cost of raw material is determined 
on a weighted average basis. 
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  Finished goods are valued at lower of cost 
and net realizable value. Cost includes direct 
material and labour and a proportion of 
manufacturing overhead based on normal 

is determined on a weighted average basis.

  Traded goods are valued at lower of cost and 
net realizable value. Costs is determined on 
weighted average basis. 

price in the ordinary course of business, less 
estimated costs of completion and estimated 
costs necessary to make the sale.

 (i) Revenue recognition

flow to the Company and the revenue can 

recognition criteria must also be met before 
revenue is recognized:

 (i) Sale of security software products and 
devices

  Revenue from sale of security software 
products and devices is recognized when all 

of the goods have been passed to the buyer, 
usually on dispatch of the goods to its 

the government and, therefore, these are not 

duty deducted from revenue (gross) is the 
amount that is included in the revenue (gross) 
and not the entire amount of liability arising 
during the year. 

 (ii) Sale of mobile security product with insurance
  Revenue from sale of mobile security products 

is recognized (net of insurance premium 
collected on behalf of insurer agency) when 

ownership of the goods have been passed to 
the buyer, usually on dispatch of the goods to 
its customers. The Company collects sales 

the government and, therefore, these are not 

duty deducted from revenue (gross) is the 
amount that is included in the revenue (gross) 
and not the entire amount of liability arising 
during the year.

 (iii) Income from services
  Revenues from support services are 

recognized as and when services are rendered.  

of the government and, therefore, it is not an 

 (iv) Interest
  Interest income is recognized on a time 

proportion basis taking into account the 
amount outstanding and the rate of applicable 
interest rate. Interest income is included under 
the head “other income” in the statement of 

 (v) Dividends
  Dividend income is recognized when the 

Company’s right to receive dividend is 
established by the reporting date. Dividend 
income is included under the head “other 

 (j) Foreign currency translation

  Foreign currency transactions and balances

 (i) Initial recognition
  Foreign currency transactions are recorded 

in the reporting currency, by applying to the 

between the reporting currency and the foreign 
currency at the date of the transaction.

 (ii) Conversion
  Foreign currency monetary items are re-

which are measured in terms of historical 
cost denominated in a foreign currency are 

are measured at fair value or other similar 
valuation denominated in a foreign currency, 

date when the values were determined.

 (iii) Exchange differences

settlement of foreign currency monetary items 

year in which they arise.

 

Company has no obligation, other than the 
contribution payable to the provident fund. The 
Company recognizes contribution payable to 
the recognizes provident fund scheme as an 

related services. If the contribution payable 
to the scheme for services received before 

is recognized as a liability after deducting the 
contribution already paid. If the contributions  

services received before the balance sheet 

cash refund.
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plan for its employees, viz. gratuity. The 

determined on the basis of actuarial valuation 
at each year-end. Actuarial valuation is carried 
out for the plan using the projected unit credit 
method. Actuarial gain and losses for the 

period in which it occurred in the statement of 

such absences as the additional amount that 

entitlement that has accumulated at the 
reporting date.

  The Company treats accumulated leave 

measurement purposes. Such long-term 
compensated absences are provided for 
based on the actuarial valuation using the 
projected unit credit method at the year end. 

deferred. The Company presents the leave as 
a current liability in the Balance Sheet to the 

to defer its settlement for 12 months after the 
reporting date. Where the Company has the 
unconditional legal and contractual right to 
defer the settlement for a period beyond 12 
months, the same is presented as non-current 
liability.

 (l) Income taxes
  

that are enacted at the reporting date. Current 

in equity is recognized in equity and not in the 

and accounting income originating during the 
current year and reversal of timing differences 

relating to items recognized directly in equity is 
recognized in equity and not in the statement 

assets are recognized for deductible timing 

realized. In situations where the Company has 

only if there is virtual certainty supported by 
convincing evidence that they can be realized 

  At each reporting date, the Company re-

certain or virtually certain, as the case may 

assets can be realized.

reviewed at each reporting date. The Company 
writes-down the carrying amount of deferred 

reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the 

income will be available against which deferred 

reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the 

income will be available.

that there is convincing evidence that the 

the period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit 
is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in 
which the Company recognizes MAT credit as 

on Accounting for Credit Available in respect of 

and shown as “MAT Credit Entitlement.” The 
Company reviews the “MAT credit entitlement” 
asset at each reporting date and writes down 

not have convincing evidence that it will pay 

 (m) Employee stock compensation cost

company receive remuneration in the form of 
share based payment transactions, whereby 
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employees render services as consideration 
for equity instruments (equity-settled 
transactions).

  In accordance with the Securities and 

Share-based Payments, the cost of equity-
settled transactions is measured using 
the intrinsic value method. The cumulative 

transactions at each reporting date until the 

best estimate of the number of equity 
instruments that will ultimately vest. The 

as at the beginning and end of that period and 

  Where the terms of an equity-settled 

terms of the award are met. An additional 

increases the total intrinsic value of the share-
based payment transaction, or is otherwise 

 (n) Segment reporting
  
  The Company’s operating businesses are 

organized and managed separately according 
to the nature of products and services 
provided, with each segment representing a 
strategic business unit that offers different 
products and serves different markets. The 
analysis of geographical segments is based on 
the areas in which major operating divisions of 
the Company operate.

 (o) Earnings per share (EPS)
  Basic earnings per share are calculated by 

to equity shareholders by the weighted average 
number of equity shares outstanding during the 
period. The weighted average number of equity 
shares outstanding during the period is adjusted 
for events such as bonus issue that have changed 
the number of equity shares outstanding, without 
a corresponding change in resources.

  
  For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings 

to the equity shareholders and the weighted 
average number of equity shares outstanding 
during the year, are adjusted for the effects of 
all dilutive potential equity shares.

 (p) Provisions
  A provision is recognized when the Company 

has a present obligation as a result of past 
event; it is probable that an outflow of resources 

to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate 
can be made of the amount of the obligation. 
Provisions are not discounted to its present 
value and are determined based on the best 
estimate required to settle the obligation at the 
reporting date. These estimates are reviewed 
at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect 
the current best estimates.

an insurance contract, the reimbursement is 
recognized as a separate assets but only when 
the reimbursement is virtually certain. The 

reimbursement.

 (q) Contingent liabilities
  A contingent liability is a possible obligation 

occurrence of one or more uncertain future 
events beyond the control of the Company 
or a present obligation that is not recognized 
because it is not probable that an outflow 
of resources will be required to settle the 
obligation. A contingent liability also arises in 

that cannot be recognized because it cannot 
be measured reliably. The Company does not 
recognize a contingent liability but discloses 

 (r) Cash and cash equivalents
  Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of 

cash flow statement comprise cash at bank 
and in hand and short term investment with 
an original maturity period of three months or 
less.

 (s) Corporate social responsibility expenditure

incurred. 
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3. Share capital     

As at  
March 31, 2016

`

As at 
March 31, 2015

`

Authorized shares
75,000,000 (March 31, 2015: 75,000,000) equity shares of  ` 10 each  750,000,000  750,000,000 

 750,000,000  750,000,000 
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares
70,030,028 (March 31, 2015:  61,069,688) equity shares of  ` 10 each  700,300,280  610,696,880 
Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital  700,300,280  610,696,880 

(a) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

As at 
March 31, 2016

As at 
March 31, 2015

No.  ` No.  ` 

At the beginning of the year  61,069,688  610,696,880  61,069,688  610,696,880 

Issued during the year
 - Employee stock option plan (ESOP)  1,172,179  11,721,790  -    -   
 - Initial public offer (IPO)  #  7,788,161  77,881,610  -    -   
Outstanding at the end of the year  70,030,028  700,300,280  61,069,688  610,696,880 

# On February 18, 2016, the Company completed the initial public offer (IPO) through an offer of 14,057,719 equity shares of face value 
` 10 each  for cash at a price of ` 321 per equity share (including a share premium of ` 311 per equity share) consisting of a fresh issue 
of up to 7,788,161 equity shares (the “Fresh Issue”) and an offer for sale of 6,269,558 equity shares by Kailash Katkar, Sanjay Katkar, 
Sequoia Capital India Investment Holdings III and Sequoia Capital India Investments III (collectively, the “Selling Shareholders”) 
    
(b) Terms / rights attached to equity shares
 The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of ` 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares 

is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed 
by the Board of Directors is subject to approval of the shareholders in ensuing Annual General Meeting.

 
 During the year ended March 31, 2016  the amount of per share dividend recognised as distribution to equity 

shareholders is  ` 2.50 (March 31, 2015 : ` 7.50)

 In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets 
of the Company, after  distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be proportion to the number of 
equity shares held by shareholders.

(c) Shares held by holding/ ultimate holding company and /or their subsidiaries/ associates
  

preceeding the reporting date

As at  
March 31, 2016

No.

As at 
March 31, 2015

No.
Equity shares alloted as fully paid up bonus shares by utilisation of security  53,435,977  53,435,977 
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(e) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

As at 
March 31, 2016

As at 
March 31, 2015

No. % holding No. % holding
Equity shares of  ` 10 each fully paid up 
Kailash Katkar  20,511,384 29.29%  22,351,384 36.60%
Sanjay Katkar  20,511,384 29.29%  22,351,384 36.60%
Anupama Katkar  5,003,976 7.15%  5,003,976 8.19%
Chhaya Katkar  5,003,976 7.15%  5,003,976 8.19%
Sequoia Capital India Investment Holdings III  3,665,410 5.23%  3,752,984 6.15%

members and is based on legal ownership of shares.    
    
(f) Shares reserved for issue under option
 For details of shares reserved for issue under ESOP of the Company, please refer note 25.

4. Reserves and surplus  

As at 
March 31, 2016

`

As at 
March 31, 2015

`

Securities premium account
 -  - 

 40,648,183  - 
Add: Additions on fresh issue of equity shares  2,422,118,071  - 
Add: Transferred from stock options outstanding account  807,042  - 

 172,436,872  - 
Closing balance  2,291,136,424  - 
Employee stock options outstanding account (Refer note 25)

 1,370,453  95,285 
Add: Additions during the year  1,498,229  1,275,168 

 807,042  - 
Closing balance  2,061,640  1,370,453 
Amalgamation reserve

 26,449,745  26,449,745 
Closing balance  26,449,745  26,449,745 
General reserve

 450,255,517  450,255,517 
Closing balance  450,255,517  450,255,517 

 2,287,529,384  2,273,948,607 
 628,613,651  562,997,871 

Interim equity dividend [amount per share ` ` 7.50)]  -  458,022,660 
 -  91,394,434 

` 2.50 (March 31, 2015 : `  175,075,070  - 
 35,641,165  - 

Total appropriations  210,716,235  549,417,094 
 2,705,426,800  2,287,529,384 

Total reserves and surplus  5,475,330,126  2,765,605,099 
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5. Current liabilities    

 As at  
March 31, 2016 

`

 As at  
March 31, 2015

`

 Trade payables    
 -Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer note 33)  -    -   
 - Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises  528,053,601  369,211,632 

 528,053,601  369,211,632 
 Other current liabilities 

 10,253,319  11,448,381 
 Advance from customers  2,399,980  3,543,590 

 44,477,746  30,299,112 
 41,184,807  25,342,119 

 Deferred revenue  38,930,520  -   
 5,032,691  3,956,437 

 142,279,063  74,589,639 
 670,332,664  443,801,271 

   
6. Short-term provisions    

 As at  
March 31, 2016

`

 As at 
 March 31, 2015  

`

 Provision for gratuity (Refer note 24)  23,340,298  16,688,445 
 9,786,242  14,808,624 

 33,126,540  31,497,069 
 Other provisions 

 -    81,530 
 165,794,811  -   

 Interim dividend  -    403,059,941 
 -    82,053,520 

 175,075,070  -   
 35,641,165  -   

 376,511,046  485,194,991 
 409,637,586  516,692,060 
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7.2 Intangible assets

 Software Total
Cost
At April 1, 2014  270,589,442  270,589,442 
Purchase  12,342,098  12,342,098 
Disposals  -  - 
At March 31, 2015  282,931,540  282,931,540 
Purchase  31,236,494  31,236,494 
Disposals  -  - 
At March 31, 2016  314,168,034  314,168,034 
Amortisation
At April 1, 2014  85,507,385  85,507,385 
Charge for the year  88,881,008  88,881,008 
Disposals -  - 
At March 31, 2015  174,388,393  174,388,393 
Charge for the year  46,043,685  46,043,685 
Disposals  -  - 
At March 31, 2016  220,432,078  220,432,078 
Net block
At March 31, 2015  108,543,147  108,543,147 
At March 31, 2016  93,735,956  93,735,956 

8. Non-current investments     

As at 
March 31, 2016

`

As at 
March 31, 2015

`

Trade investments (valued at cost unless stated otherwise)  
Unquoted equity instruments 
Investment in wholly owned subsidiaries: 
1,807 (March 31, 2015: 852) equity shares of JPY 50,000 each fully paid-up in 
Quick Heal Technologies Japan K.K. , Japan

 52,352,473  26,328,723 

130,000 * (March 31, 2015: 30,000) equity shares of USD 1 each fully paid-up in 
Quick Heal Technologies America Inc. , USA

 16,740,973  1,661,973 

1,780,000 (March 31, 2015: 1,780,000) equity shares of KSH 10 each fully paid-  12,636,383  12,636,383 

28 (March 31, 2015: 28) equity shares of AED 100,000 each fully paid-up in  48,316,000  48,316,000 

 130,045,829  88,943,079 
Agreeget amount of unquoted investments  

alloted 
Investment others: 
15,162 (March 31, 2015: 15,162) Compulsory Convertible Preference Share of   
`

 4,149,992  4,149,992 

` 10 each fully paid in Smartalyse  30,000,000  -   

    34,149,992  4,149,992 
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments  164,195,821  93,093,071 
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 9. Deferred tax assets (net)

As at 
March 31, 2016

`

As at 
March 31, 2015

`

Deferred tax liability
 38,675,232  38,355,582 

Gross deferred tax liability  38,675,232  38,355,582 
Deferred tax asset

 24,257,137  12,835,537 

Deferred revenue  9,527,762  -   
Provision for doubtful debts and advances  76,532,576  74,024,868 
Gross deferred tax asset  110,317,475  86,860,405 
Net deferred tax assets  71,642,243  48,504,823 

        
10. Loans and advances     

 Non-current  Current 
 As at  

March 31, 2016
`

 As at  
March 31, 2015

`

As at 
March 31, 2016

`

 As at  
March 31, 2015

`

Capital advances    
Unsecured, considered good  6,966,765  3,432,763  -   -

 6,966,765  3,432,763 -  -   
Loans and advances to related parties 
Unsecured, considered good 
Advance to subsidiaries (Refer note 29)  3,288,897  3,571,123  -    -   

 3,288,897  3,571,123 -  -   
Security deposits 
Unsecured, considered good  -    -    33,962,513  8,749,459 

 -    -    33,962,513  8,749,459 
Advances recoverable in cash or kind  
Unsecured, considered good (includes an 
inter-corporate loan, refer note 38)

 333,179  210,691  36,481,683  2,209,699 

 333,179  210,691  36,481,683  2,209,699 
Other loans and advances 
Unsecured, considered good  

 170,561,380  168,651,527  -    -   

 -    -    16,692,269  24,749,485 

government authorities 
 -    -    459,216  2,792,334 

Advance to suppliers  -    -    3,155,896  13,794,582 
Advance to employees  -    -    2,016,735  1,447,004 
Unsecured, considered Doubtful 
Advance to suppliers  -    -    6,383,812  6,383,812 

 170,561,380  168,651,527  28,707,928  49,167,217 
Provision for doubtful advances  -    -    (6,383,812)  (6,383,812)

 170,561,380  168,651,527  22,324,116  42,783,405 
 181,150,221  175,866,104  92,768,312  53,742,563 
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As at
March 31, 2016

`

 As at  
March 31, 2015

`

Advance to employees includes 
 1,084,737  187,518 

    
11. Other non-current assets     

As at 
March 31, 2016

`

As at 
March 31, 2015

`

 Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise  
 19,999,13  12,36,318

  19,999,13  12,36,318 
    
12. Current investments (Valued at lower of cost and fair value unless stated otherwise)    

As at 
March 31, 2016

`

As at 
March 31, 2015

`

Non-trade
 1,083,966,694  1,296,076,569 

` `

Aggregate amount of quoted investments  1,083,966,694  1,296,076,569 

12.) Details of investment in mutual funds  

 As at  
March 31, 2016

`

 As at  
March 31, 2015

`

`  -    64,071,668 

`  5,000,000  5,000,000 

`  -    10,000,000 

`  10,000,000  10,000,000 

`  -    38,528,903 

`  5,000,000  5,000,000 

`  -    9,813,173 

`  -    10,000,000 

`  -    5,380,544 

`  20,000,000  20,126,112 

`  -    1,214,364 

`  -    47,780,897 
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 As at  
March 31, 2016

`

 As at  
March 31, 2015

`

`  -    36,401,564 

`  47,598,722  82,449,340 

`  35,224,111  51,880,416 

`  35,119,027  72,760,000 

`  -    77,414,971 

`  20,000,000  40,000,000 

`  107,926,490  72,650,669 

`  21,547,125  61,926,472 

`  19,200,000  -   

`  37,000,648  -   

`  57,496,596  95,682,985 

`  128,797,678  -   

`  36,689,228  40,086,832 

`  -    1,636,185 

`  36,466,218  63,266,267 

`  32,109,201  10,048,638 

`  136,336,104  94,490,931 

`  10,000,000  10,000,000 

`  33,432,755  47,568,331 

`  10,000,000  10,000,000 

`  10,000,000  10,000,000 

`  10,000,000  10,000,000 

`  -    40,218,367 

`  75,332,801  50,171,982 

`  10,004,106  -   
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 As at  
March 31, 2016

`

 As at  
March 31, 2015

`

` 10 each fully paid up of Reliance Short 
Term Fund - Monthly Dividend Plan

 64,539,362  -   

` 1,000 each fully paid up of Reliance  -    28,288,135 

1,000,000 (March 31, 2015: 1,000,000) units of ̀  10 each fully paid up of ‘Reliance  10,000,000  10,000,000 

500,000 (March 31, 2015: 500,000) units of ` 10 each fully paid up of Reliance  5,000,000  5,000,000 

500,000 (March 31, 2015: 500,000) units of ` 10 each fully paid up of Reliance  5,000,000  5,000,000 

1,000,000 (March 31, 2015: 1,000,000) units of ` 10 each fully paid up of Reliance  10,000,000  10,000,000 

29,052 (March 31, 2015: 22,147) units of ̀  1,000 each fully paid up of SBI Premier  29,146,522  22,218,823 

1,000,000 (March 31, 2015: 1,000,000) units of ̀  10 each fully paid up of SBI Debt 
Fund Series - 366 days - 52 -Regular Plan Growth

 10,000,000  10,000,000 

 1,083,966,694  1,296,076,569 

13. Trade receivables    

As at 
March 31, 2016

`

As at 
March 31, 2015

`

Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they are due for 
payment
Unsecured, considered good  69,202,355  60,625,935 
Unsecured, considered doubtful  214,757,474  211,400,442 

 283,959,829  272,026,377 
 214,757,474  211,400,442 
 69,202,355  60,625,935 

Others
Unsecured, considered good  921,897,885  615,945,791 
Unsecured, considered doubtful  -    -   

 921,897,885  615,945,791 
 -    -   

 921,897,885  615,945,791 
 991,100,240  676,571,726 

          
14. Inventories (valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)    

As at  
March 31, 2016

`

As at 
March 31, 2015

`

 Raw materials - Security software devices [includes in transit of ` 248,822 
(March 31, 2015: ` 106,844)]  23,023,093  28,706,255 
Finished goods - Security softwares [includes in transit of ` 35,377 (March 31, 
2015: ` 4,954,803)]  30,657,796  40,912,069 
  53,680,889  69,618,324 
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15. Cash and bank balances    
 

Non-current Current
 As at 

March 31, 2016 
`

 As at  
March 31, 2015

`

As at 
March 31, 2016

`

 As at  
March 31, 2015

`

Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:

 -    -    341,808,819  70,572,263 
 -    -    1,485,779  367,850 
 -    -    750,000,000  -   

 -    -    12,000,000  -   
 -    -    1,955,076  1,139,388 
 -    -    1,107,249,674  72,079,501 

Other bank balances
 -    -    1,523,317,675  524,820 

 1,999,913  1,236,318  -  827,093 

 1,999,913  1,236,318  1,523,317,675  1,351,913 
 -    -   

 -    -    2,630,567,349  73,431,414 
    

` `
     
16. Other current assets    

As at 
March 31, 2016

`

 As at  
March 31, 2015

`

 11,419,817  154,405 
 2,803,835  -   

 311,286  1,460,036 
 4,506,483  -   

 19,041,421  1,614,441 
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17. Revenue from operations (net)  

 For the  
year ended  

March 31, 2016
`

 For the  
year ended  

March 31, 2015
`

Revenue from operations  
Sale of security software products  3,344,117,931  2,838,032,459 
Sale of software support services  560,499  2,641,820 
Revenue from operations (net)  3,344,678,430  2,840,674,279 

  For the  
year ended  

March 31, 2016
`

 For the  
year ended  

March 31, 2015
`

Details of products sold
Security software licenses  3,315,955,103  2,812,141,214 

 28,162,828  25,891,245 
 3,344,117,931  2,838,032,459 

     
18. Other income  

 For the  
year ended  

March 31, 2016
`

 For the  
year ended  

March 31, 2015
`

Interest income on
    Bank deposits  12,638,694  3,581,939 
    Others  2,980,264  212,110 
Dividend income on current investments  47,828,273  63,615,353 

 19,336,419  13,728,730 
 3,024,073  -   

 -    567,182 
Miscellaneous income  7,663,966  124,743 

 93,471,689  81,830,057 
  
19.  Details related to cost of security software devices and software products  

 For the  
year ended  

March 31, 2016
`

For the  
year ended 

March 31, 2015
`

19(a) Cost of raw materials consumed  
Inventory at the beginning of the year  28,706,255  24,690,898 
Add: Purchases  7,112,824  24,884,999 

 23,023,093  28,706,255 
 12,795,986  20,869,642 

19(b) Purchase of security software products
Security software products  120,547,936  137,146,517 

 120,547,936  137,146,517 
19(c) (Increase )/decrease in security software products
Inventory at the beginning of the year  40,912,069  29,468,420 

 30,657,796  40,912,069 
 10,254,273  (11,443,649)

 143,598,195  146,572,510 
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Details of raw materials consumed   

 For the  
year ended  

March 31, 2016
`

For the  
year ended 

March 31, 2015
`

 12,795,986  20,869,642 
 12,795,986  20,869,642 

Details of inventory

 As at  
March 31, 2016

`

 As at  
March 31, 2015

`

Raw materials
 23,023,093  28,706,255 

 23,023,093  28,706,255 

 As at  
March 31, 2016

`

 As at  
March 31, 2015

`

Finished goods
Security softwares products  30,657,796  40,912,069 

 30,657,796  40,912,069 

For the  
year ended  

March 31, 2016
`

 For the  
year ended  

March 31, 2015
`

 Salaries, wages and bonus  771,619,004  569,565,052 
Contribution to provident fund and other fund  27,631,819  17,917,904 
Contribution to other funds  -    -   

 11,814,289  16,980,570 
 20,238,686  19,804,729 

 1,498,229  1,275,168 
 832,802,027  625,543,423 

21. Depreciation and amortisation expense  

 For the  
year ended  

March 31, 2016
`

 For the  
year ended  

 March 31, 2015 
`

Depreciation on tangible assets (Refer note 7.1)  190,735,263  112,948,762 
Amortization of intangible assets (Refer note 7.2)  46,043,685  88,881,008 

 236,778,948  201,829,770 
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22. Other expenses  

 For the  
year ended  

March 31, 2016
`

 For the  
year ended  

March 31, 2015
`

 90,337,374  89,019,957 
Technology subscription charges  53,772,467  37,226,236 
Fees for technical services  110,999,029  119,231,273 
Power and fuel  32,860,875  19,391,767 
Rent (Refer note 26)  27,008,441  27,937,220 

 9,184,263  11,387,763 
Insurance  12,426,958  2,599,031 
Repairs and maintenance 
      Buildings  12,617,022  4,991,002 
      Others  14,224,893  10,869,114 

 10,640,000  2,425,501 
Sales incentive  236,337,773  223,078,921 
Commission to independent directors  1,600,000  -   
Directors’ sitting fees  308,250  -   

 184,883,281  133,017,968 
Advertisement and sales promotion  253,925,834  287,705,805 
Freight and forwarding charges  6,342,051  7,880,742 
Traveling and conveyance  41,734,306  35,664,353 
Communication costs  50,806,421  29,503,045 

 55,032,159  28,925,641 
Donations
       Donations to others  378,049  842,600 
       Donation to political parties (Refer details below)  -    2,500,000 

 64,658,913  21,572,516 
Payment to statutory auditor (Refer details below)  4,774,263  2,894,286 

 -    751,175 
 -    78,771 

Provision for doubtful debts and advances  3,357,032  11,725,450 
 19,035  -   

Bad debts written off  2,108,067  3,003,689 
 14,543,961  11,263,221 

 1,294,880,717  1,125,487,047 

Payment to auditor *  

 For the  
year ended  

March 31, 2016
`

 For the  
year ended  

March 31, 2015
`

As auditor:
Audit fees  2,209,247  2,641,760 

In other capacity:
 2,505,357  141,146 

 59,659  111,380 
 4,774,263  2,894,286 
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Donation to political parties  

Name of the party to which such amount has been contributed  For the  
year ended  

March 31, 2016
`

 For the  
year ended  

March 31, 2015
`

Bhartiya Janta Party  -  1,500,000 
Shivsena  -  1,000,000 
Total amount contributed  -  2,500,000 

23. Earnings per share      

As at 
March 31, 2016

`

As at 
March 31, 2015

`

Numerator for basic and diluted EPS:
`) (A)  628,613,651  562,997,871 

Denominator for basic EPS:
Weighted average number of equity shares (in numbers) (B)  62,347,488  61,069,688 
Denominator for diluted EPS:
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic EPS (C)  62,347,488  61,069,688 
Effect of dilution:
Stock options granted under ESOP (in numbers) (D)  18,319  865,793 
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating diluted EPS E=(C+D)  62,365,807  61,935,481 
Basic and diluted earning per share of face value of ` 10 each (in `)  10.08  9.22 
Diluted Earnings per share of face value of ` 10 each (in `)  10.08  9.09 

24. Gratuity

completed year of service. The scheme is funded with an insurance Company in the form of a qualifying insurance 
policy.

loss and the funded status and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for the gratuity plan.

 

For the  
year ended 

March 31, 2016
`

For the  
year ended 

March 31, 2015
`

Current service cost 10,286,954 9,542,629
2,717,353 1,654,860

(1,762,103) (1,298,188)
572,085 7,081,269

11,814,289 16,980,570
Actual return on plan assets 1,339,007 1,023,910
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 Balance sheet

As at 
March 31, 2016

`

As at  
March 31, 2015

`

(47,301,508) (35,527,498)
Fair value of plan assets 23,961,210 18,839,053
Plan assets / (liability) (23,340,298) (16,688,445)

As at 
March 31, 2016

`

As at  
March 31, 2015

`

35,527,498 18,847,536
Interest cost 2,717,353 1,654,860
Current service cost 10,286,954 9,542,629

(1,379,286) (1,324,518)
Actuarial losses on obligation 148,989 6,806,991

47,301,508 35,527,498

 Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

As at 
March 31, 2016

`

As at  
March 31, 2015

`

Opening fair value of plan assets 18,839,053 11,033,489
1,762,103 1,298,188

Contributions by employer 5,162,436 8,106,172
(1,379,286) (1,324,518)

Actuarial losses on plan assets (423,096) (274,278)
Closing fair value of plan assets 23,961,210 18,839,053

` `16,688,445).

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows: 
Nature of plan assets As at 

March 31, 2016
As at  

March 31, 2015
Investments with insurer 100% 100%

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s plan are shown below:
For the 

year ended
March 31, 2016

%

For the  
year ended

March 31, 2015
%

Discount rate 7.80 7.80
9.00 9.00

Employee turnover 15.00 15.00

  - First two years
  - Thereafter

12.00
9.00

 
12.00

9.00
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The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion 
and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

Amounts for the current and previous four years are as follows:

As at
March 31, 2016

`

As at
March 31, 2015

`

As at
March 31, 2014

`

As at
March 31, 2013

`

As at
March 31, 2012

`

obligation
47,301,508 35,527,498 18,847,536 12,819,162 10,534,967

Plan assets 23,961,210 18,839,053 11,033,489 7,031,510 5,906,204
(23,340,298) (16,688,445) (7,814,047) (5,787,652) (4,628,763)

gain 

(148,989) (3,060,778) (1,844,824) (85,635) 215,239

gain

(423,096) (274,278) 57,850 26,852 43,179

25. Employee stock option plan
 The Company provides share-based payment schemes to its employees. During the year ended March 31, 2016, an 

i. Details of Employee stock option plan
 
 Employee Stock Option Plan, 2010 (ESOP 2010)
 On June 10, 2010, the Board of Directors approved the Equity Settled ESOP Scheme 2010 for issue of stock options 

to the employees and directors of the Company. According to the ESOP 2010, the employee selected by the Board 
of Directors from time to time will be entitled for scheme options, subject to satisfaction of the prescribed vesting 
conditions, viz., continued employment and performance parameters of employee. The contractual life (comprising 

ii. The Company has provided the following share-based payment schemes to its employees:

Particulars Details
Date of grant June 10, 2010
Date of Board approval June 10, 2010 
Date of shareholder’s approval June 10, 2010 
Method of settlement Equity
Vesting period 4 years

5 years from date of listing or date of vesting, whichever is later

Grant I 5.85 - 7.35
Grant II 4.53 - 6.50
Grant III 3.95 - 6.50
Fair value of shares on date of grant ` 37.50 - ` 115.24
Vesting conditions Continued employment and performance of employee as per 

contract
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iii. The vesting pattern of the scheme is as follows:
Time period from the date of grant Cumulative percentage of share vesting
12 months 25%
24 months 50%
36 months 75%
48 months 100%

 The details of activities under the scheme have been summarized below: 
For the year ended  

March 31, 2016
For the year ended  

March 31, 2015
Number of 

options
Weighted 

average 
exercise price 

(`) 

Number of 
options

Weighted 
average 

exercise price 
(`)

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,467,016 47.69 1,384,944 41.91
Granted during the year - - 122,000 110.00
Forfeited during the year 13,320 37.50 39,928 37.50

1,107,703 40.88 - -
- - - -

Outstanding at the end of the year 345,993 69.91 1,467,016 47.69
202,493 - 1,267,016 -

iv. The details of exercise price for stock options outstanding at the end of the year are:
As at 

March 31, 2016
As at  

March 31, 2015
`)

345,993 1,467,016
Weighted average remaining contractual life of options (in years) 5.52 6.59

`) 69.91 47.69

 Employee Stock Option Plan, 2014 (ESOP 2014)
 On February 6, 2014, the Board of Directors approved the Equity Settled ESOP Scheme 2014 for issue of stock options 

to the employees and directors of the Company. According to the ESOP 2014, the employee selected by the Board 
of Directors from time to time will be entitled for scheme options, subject to satisfaction of the prescribed vesting 
conditions, viz., continued employment and performance parameters of employee. The contractual life (comprising 

v. The Company has provided the following share-based payment schemes to its employees:
Particulars Details
Date of grant February 6, 2014
Date of Board approval February 6, 2014
Date of shareholder’s approval February 6, 2014
Method of settlement Equity
Vesting period 4 years

5 years from date of listing or date of vesting, whichever is later

Grant IV
Grant V
Grant VI
Grant VII
Grant VIII

Fair value of shares on date of grant ` 115.24 - ` 119.00
Vesting conditions Continued employment and performance of employee as per contract
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vi. The vesting pattern of the scheme is as follows:

Time period from the date of grant Cumulative percentage of share vesting
12 months 25%
24 months 50%
36 months 75%
48 months 100%

The details of activities under the scheme have been summarized below:

For the year ended  
March 31, 2016

For the year ended  
March 31, 2015

Number of 
options

Weighted 
average 

exercise price 
(`) 

Number of 
options

Weighted 
average 

exercise price 
(`)

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 369,900 110.00 - -
Granted during the year 210,000 115.22 369,900 110.00
Forfeited during the year 34,099 111.69 - -

64,476 110.00 - -
- - - -

Outstanding at the end of the year 481,325 112.16 369,900 110.00
19,650 - - -

vii. The details of exercise price for stock options outstanding at the end of the year are:
As at 

March 31, 2016
As at  

March 31, 2015
`) 110.00

481,325 369,900
Weighted average remaining contractual life of options (in years) 6.71 7.10

`) 112.16 110.00

viii. Stock options granted:
 The weighted average fair value of stock options granted during the year was ` 27.13 (March 31, 2015: ` 31.43). 

The Black-Scholes valuation model has been used for computing the weighted average fair value considering the 
following inputs:

For the 
year ended         

March 31, 2016

For the 
year ended         

March 31, 2015
Weighted average share price (`) 115.22 115.16

`) 110.00
0% 0%

Historical volatility (%) 0% 0%
3.50 - 6.50 

Years
3.98 - 6.50 

Years
Average risk-free interest rate (%) 7.67% 8.82%
Dividend yield 6.41% 1.35%

position
 

31, 2016 amounted to ̀  1,498,229 (March 31, 2015: ̀  1,275,168). The liability for employee stock options outstanding 
as at March 31, 2016 is ` 2,061,640 (March 31, 2015: ` 1,370,453).
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x. Proforma disclosures by applying fair value method
 

per share by applying the fair value method is set out as follows:
For the 

year ended         
March 31, 2016

`

For the 
year ended         

March 31, 2015
`

628,613,651 562,997,871
Add: Employee stock compensation under intrinsic value method 1,498,228 1,275,168

4,368,698 5,724,855
625,743,181 558,548,184

Earnings per share
Basic:
 - As reported 10.08 9.22
 - Proforma 10.04 9.15
Diluted:
 - As reported 10.08 9.09
 - Proforma 10.03 9.02

26. Leases
 Operating lease: the Company as lessee 

and are renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreed terms. There are no restrictions imposed by lease 
arrangements. There are no subleases. The details are as follows:

For the 
year ended         

March 31, 2016
`

For the 
year ended         

March 31, 2015
`

27,008,441 27,937,220

 Finance lease: the Company as lessee
 

these leases involve upfront payment to the lessor as and by way of premium for grant of lease of the building by the 

27. Segment information
 Primary segment

reward structure, organisation structure and internal reporting systems, the Company has structured its operations 
into one business segment.

 Geographical segment

and outside India as two geographical segments for secondary segment reporting. All assets and liabilities of the 
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 Revenue from operations
For the 

year ended         
March 31, 2016

`

For the 
year ended         

March 31, 2015
`

Within India 3,280,025,469 2,784,178,575
Outside India 64,652,961 56,495,704
Total 3,344,678,430 2,840,674,279

 Allocable segments assets are as follows:
 
 Trade receivables (net)

As at         
March 31, 2016

`

As at         
March 31, 2015

`

Within India 897,782,321 618,688,810
Outside India 93,317,919 57,882,916
Total 991,100,240 676,571,726

geographical segment as all these assets are situated in India.

28. Corporate Social Responsibility expenditure

For the 
year ended         

March 31, 2016
`

For the 
year ended         

March 31, 2015
`

(a)   Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 19,996,326 13,818,917

(b)    Amount spent during the year

For the  
year ended          

March 31, 2016
`

For the  
year ended          

March 31, 2015
`

Paid Yet to  
be paid

Total Paid Yet to  
be paid

Total

1 For the purpose of Education 
and Social Activity

10,640,000 - 10,640,000 2,425,501 - 2,425,501

29. Related party disclosures
 i. Names of related parties and related party relationship

Related parties where control exists
Wholly owned subsidiaries i. Quick Heal Technologies America Inc., USA

ii. Quick Heal Technologies Japan K.K., Japan

Related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year
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Key management personnel

iii. 

v. Vijay Shirode, Company Secretary
Relatives of  key management 
personnel

i. Anupama Katkar  (wife of Kailash Katkar)

ii. Chhaya Katkar     (wife of Sanjay Katkar)
Enterprises owned by directors or 
major shareholders

i. Kailash Sahebrao Katkar HUF

ii. Sanjay Sahebrao Katkar HUF
iii. Quick Heal Foundation

 ii. Transactions with related parties:

Nature of transaction Name of the related party For the year ended
March 31, 2016

`
March 31, 2015

`
Remuneration Kailash Katkar 11,440,000 10,020,000

Sanjay Katkar 11,440,000 10,020,000
Abhijit Jorvekar 11,920,800 8,393,200
Anupama Katkar 2,780,000 2,550,000
Rajesh Ghonasgi 14,776,000 9,338,333
Vijay Shirode 1,816,000 917,600

54,172,800 40,321,533
ESOP exercise Rajesh Ghonasgi 2,502,500 -

Abhijit Jorvekar 6,035,000 -
8,537,500 -

Rent Kailash Katkar 960,000 960,000
Anupama Katkar 246,569 224,233
Chhaya Katkar 246,569 224,233
Kailash Sahebrao Katkar HUF 821,893 747,477
Sanjay Sahebrao Katkar HUF 821,893 747,477

3,096,924 2,903,420
Corporate social responsibility 
contribution

Quick Heal Foundation 10,640,000 2,353,501

10,640,000 2,353,501
Sale of security software products Quick Heal Technologies America Inc. 1,048,368 1,059,127

Quick Heal Technologies Japan K.K 5,272,357 5,959,306
6,664,428 5,561,380

17,774,705 9,492,806
30,759,858 22,072,619

Investment Quick Heal Technologies Japan K.K 26,023,750 5,128,602
- 41,616,000
- 1,727,529

Quick Heal Technologies America Inc. 15,079,000 -
41,102,750 48,472,131

IPO expenses incurred on behalf 
of directors and recoverable/
recovered from them:

Kailash Katkar 37,238,575 -

Sanjay Katkar 37,238,575 -
74,477,150 -

Kailash Katkar 51,278,460 -
Sanjay Katkar 51,278,460 -
Anupama Katkar 12,509,940 -
Chhaya Katkar 12,509,940 -
Rajesh Ghonasgi 66,411 -

127,643,211 -
Interim dividend declared and paid Kailash Katkar 147,519,134 20,116,246

Sanjay Katkar 147,519,134 20,116,246
Anupama Katkar 33,026,242 4,503,578
Chhaya Katkar 33,026,242 4,503,578

361,090,752 49,239,648
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 iii. Balance outstanding

Name of the related party As at
March 31, 2016

`
March 31, 2015

`
Remuneration payable* 562,800 1,447,800

565,000 1,450,000
346,000 313,829
166,100 385,800
426,000 453,000

81,000 72,800
2,146,900 4,123,229

Rent payable 6,291 17,968
6,291 17,968

20,963 59,895
20,963 59,895
54,508 155,726

Trade receivable 3,958,776 2,739,591
26,052,401 18,315,699
13,239,851 6,276,210
34,548,376 17,132,975

77,799,404 44,464,475
Advances receivable from 
subsidiaries

333,401 296,319

2,180,272 2,407,582
96,881 17,633

678,343 849,589
3,288,897 3,571,123

Advance receivable from key 
management personnel

372,808 -

231,786 -
321,140 187,518
159,003 -

1,084,737 187,518
IPO expenses receivable 1,306,609 -

1,306,609 -
2,613,218 -

payable
51,278,460 -

51,278,460 -
12,509,940 -
12,509,940 -

66,411 -
127,643,211 -

Interim dividend Payable - 147,519,134
- 147,519,134
- 33,026,242
- 33,026,242
- 361,090,752

30. Capital and other commitments

As at 
March 31, 2016

`

As at  
March 31, 2015

`
Capital commitments:

21,609,454 201,575,269

Other commitments:
30,000,000 -
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Note A
The Company has entered into an agreement for making an investment of ` 60,000,000 in equity shares of Smartalyse 

` 30,000,000 each. The Company has already 
made an investment of `

Note B
For lease related commitments refer note 26.

Note C

31. Contingent liabilities

(A) Contingent liabilities
As at 

March 31, 2016
`

As at  
March 31, 2015

`

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts
 560,705,595  627,305,953
285,354,034 -

154,326 154,326
3,504,300   3,504,300                 

Total 849,718,255 630,964,579

Notes: 
 i. During the current year, the Company received a statement of demand dated January 28, 2016 in relation 

` ` 560,715,595) for the period 
from March 01, 2011 to March 31, 2014 on supply of anti-virus software in Compact Disk issued by Additional 

accordingly no provision have been considered necessary in this regards and also for the subsequent period 
till  March 31, 2016.

 ii. During the current year, the Company received statement of demand dated January 25, 2016, in relation to 
`

set aside and accordingly no provision have been considered necessary in this regards and also for the 
subsequent period till  March 31, 2016.

  Based on the grounds mentioned in point (i) and (ii) above, the Company has not recognised provision for 

period April 1, 2015 to March 31, 2016.

 iii. During the year ended March 31, 2015, the Company had received a notice of demand of VAT in the state 
of Kerala for ` 154,326 (VAT ` 130,785; Interest `
the stock transfer of anti-virus products transferred to the Branch. The Company had appealed the same 

strong arguments on facts as well as on point of law and outflow is not probable. Accordingly, no provision 

liability as at March 31, 2016 and as at March 31, 2015.
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` 3,504,300 (including interest of `

appeals against assessment order with relevant authorities. The management had represented that they have 

contingent liability as at March 31, 2016 and as at March 31, 2015.

(B)  Other litigation
 

(Senior Division) at Serampore Court, Hooghly District, West Bengal against the Company and others, claiming 
Intellectual Property Rights to one of the brand names (Quick Heal-Total Security) and alleging illegal usage 
of said brand name by the Company. The Company is seeking dismissal of the said Title Suit.

 ii)  In February 2016, certain individuals who are relative of one of the erstwhile distributor instituted a suit before 
the  City Civil Court, Calcutta claiming ownership of certain shares of the Company.  

 iii)  In February 2016, one of the erstwhile distributor instituted a suit at High Court, Calcutta against the Company 
and others claiming `
assets and infrastructure etc.

  With respect to the above matters, the Company believes that the suits are frivolous and is seeking dismissal 

 

Police Station, Himachal Pradesh, against certain directors and employees of the Company. The police 
investigated the case and came to the conclusion that there was no truth to the allegations in the FIR. The 

32. Particulars of unhedged foreign currency exposures as at the balance sheet date

As at March 31, 2016 As at March 31, 2015
Foreign 

currency
In foreign 
currency

In Indian 
Rupees

Foreign 
currency

In foreign 
currency

In Indian 
Rupees

Bank balances USD 22,463 1,485,779 USD 5,883 367,850
Cash balances

EUR 4,031 301,622 EUR - -
USD 1,389 91,880 USD - -
AED 3,176 57,183 AED - -
BDT 15,310 12,665 BDT - -

662 2,907 662 3,422
AUD 1,071 54,192 AUD 971 46,663
ETB 1,112 3,393 ETB 1,112 3,369
IDR 25,000 125 IDR 25,000 119
JPY 75,203 44,221 JPY 8,000 4,181
KES 1,517 973 KES 317 211

MYR 373 6,254 MYR 373 6,280
SGD 613 29,985 SGD 34 1,538
HKD 600 5,117 HKD - -
GBP 600 57,118 GBP - -
THB 826 1,547 THB 826 1,583

Trade receivables USD 361,107 23,884,616 USD 366,389 22,964,795
JPY 36,591,381 21,515,732 JPY 27,403,789 14,321,221
AED 696,313 12,535,870 AED 333,177 5,671,274
KES 50,089,154 32,117,166 KES 22,337,840 14,834,560
AUD 4,694 237,594 AUD 3,028 145,584

Trade payables USD 2,700 179,818 USD 15,577 975,061
- - 80,569 50,355

Investment JPY 90,350,000 52,352,473 JPY 42,600,000 26,328,723
AED 2,800,000 48,316,000 AED 2,800,000 48,316,000
USD 255,000 16,740,973 USD 30,000 1,661,973
KES 17,800,000 12,636,383 KES 17,800,000 12,636,383
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As at March 31, 2016 As at March 31, 2015
Foreign 

currency
In foreign 
currency

In Indian 
Rupees

Foreign 
currency

In foreign 
currency

In Indian 
Rupees

USD 177 12,086 USD - -
JPY - - JPY - -

Advances to subsidiaries USD 1,465 96,881 USD 282 17,633
JPY 567,008 333,401 JPY 567,008 296,319
AED 121,105 2,180,272 AED 141,441 2,407,582
KES 1,057,928 678,343 KES 1,279,309 849,589

Advances receivable from Key 
managerial personnel

AED 4,440 79,934 - - -
GBP 200 19,039 - - -
HKD 200 1,706 - - -
JPY 95,135 55,941 - - -
SGD 200 9,778 - - -
USD 13,667 903,974 - - -

33. Details of du

Small Enterprises under MSMED Act, 2006.
 As at March 31, 2016 and previous year March 31, 2015, the disclosure has been made on the basis of intimation 

provided by the supplier to the Company. 

34. Value of imports calculated on CIF basis

For the  
year ended

March 31, 2016
`

For the  
year ended

March 31, 2015
`

Purchase of software - 1,247,464
- 1,247,464

35. Expenditure in foreign currency (accrual basis)

For the  
year ended

March 31, 2016
`

For the  
year ended

March 31, 2015
`

Advertising and sales promotion 1,009,255 3,757,902
Technology subscription charges 45,295,280 28,786,438
Fees for technical services 34,117,806 31,828,614
Travelling and conveyance 2,302,277 3,116,707

381,129 1,394,483
4,087,283 -

162,380 858,371
87,355,410 69,742,515

36. Earnings in foreign currency (accrual basis)

For the  
year ended

March 31, 2016
`

For the  
year ended

March 31, 2015
`

Sale of  security software products 58,983,286 49,093,058
58,983,286 49,093,058

37. Net dividend remitted in foreign exchange:

For the  
year ended

March 31, 2016

For the  
year ended

March 31, 2015
Period to which it relates 2014-15 2013-14 and 

2014-15
1 1

2,501,984 2,501,984
Amount remitted (in USD) 2,48,691 63,143 and 

36,824
Amount remitted ( in `) 16,513,094 3,875,076 and 

2,251,786
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38. Disclosure required under section 186(4) of the Companies Act 2013

Name of the loanee Rate of interest Due date Secured/ 
unsecured

As at
March 31, 2016 

`

As at
March 31, 2015 

`
35,000,000 -

39. Share issue expenses recoverable

`
of `

 Share issue expenses

40. Utilization of money raised through public issue
`

Fund allocated to 
the activities as per 

prospectus
`

Actual 
utilization up to 
March 31, 2016

`

Unutilized 
money as on 

March 31, 2016
`

1,110,000,000 - 1,110,000,000
418,800,000 5,790,000 413,010,000
275,950,000 19,560,000 256,390,000

       537,760,000 - 537,760,000
Total 2,342,510,000 25,350,000 2,317,160,000

 Utilisation of IPO proceeds:
Amount

`

4,512,527,799
2,012,528,118

Sub-total (A) 2,499,999,681
297,506,492
125,069,620

Sub-total (B) 172,436,872
Net proceeds (A-B) 2,327,562,809
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 Details of short-term investments made from unutilized portion of public issue raised during the year ended 
March 31, 2016:

Amount
`

2,250,000,000
Balance in current accounts 67,160,000
Total 2,317,160,000

 Advances given to wholly owned subsidiary

Particular Quick Heal 
Technologies  

Japan K.K.

Quick Heal 
Technologies 
America Inc.

Quick Heal 
Technologies  

Africa Limited

Quick Heal 
Technologies 

(MENA) FZE
Balance as at 31 March 2016 333,401 96,881 678,343 2,180,272

341,226 100,503 849,589 2,673,859

Balance as at 31 March 2015 296,319 17,633 849,589 2,407,582
486,469 17,932 881,444 2,407,582

 

For S R B C & CO LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Quick Heal Technologies Limited

per Tridevlal Khandelwal Kailash Katkar Sanjay Katkar
Partner Managing Director Managing Director

Place: Pune Rajesh  Ghonasgi  Vijay Shirode 
Date: May 11, 2016  Company Secretary 
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Quick Heal Technologies Limited
E-mail: cs@quickheal.co.in Website: www.quickheal.com

Proxy Form
[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rule, 2014]

 
Registered Address:  Email Id: 

 DP ID: 

 Address : 
    
 Email ID : 
 Signature : 

 Address : 
    
 Email ID : 
 Signature : 

 Address : 
    
 Email ID : 
 Signature : 

Mahatma Phule Museum, Shivajinagar, Pune, Maharashtra 411005, and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as 
are indicated below:

1) Adoption of Audited Financial Statements as at 31st March, 2016 (Standalone and Consolidated) together with reports of Directors 
and Auditors thereon;

st March, 2016.

for re-appointment.

for re-appointment.

Auditors of the Company, as approved in the 19th Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the 24th Annual General Meeting 

7) Re-appointment of Mrs. Anupama Katkar.
8) Approval of Employee Stock option Scheme 2010 (ESOP 2010).
9) Approval of Employee Stock option Scheme 2014 (ESOP 2014).

Signed this  day of , 2016.

Signature of Share holder : 

capital of the Company. Members holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company may appoint a single 

Revenue
Stamp
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